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Profile of Directors

Fawl O, AGYIRI
Exoculive Dirsciar

Annual Report & Financlal Statements -

Alhaji Ibrahim Adam holds a B.Sc (Hons) Agric Degrea from the Kwamea Nkrumah
LUniversity of Science and Technology, Kumasi. He has altended several shorl
courses on rce produclion, adminkstralion and management al WARDA
(Monravia), IITA {lbadan, Migera), GIMPA, EDI (Maastricht) and Feldafing
(Germany). Mr. Adam served in government between 1984 and 2001. During the
period, hewas PNDC Under-Secretary Tor Agriculture (Morthern Reglon) from 1984
to 1985 whan he was madea the PNDC Depuly Secretary for Agnculture (Crops) and
promoted to PNDC Secretary for Agriculture in 1922 Af the beginning of the Fourth
Republic in 1993, he first served as the Minister of Food and Agricullure until 1936
when he was mada the Minister of Trade. Currently the GEO of Brada Venturas, Mr.
Adam is @ member of the Agriculture Society of Ghana [ASDHE), Animal Science
Association of Ghana, and International Food Policy Research Insliule (IFPRI),
LISA, Ha has to his record many arlicles and a number of books on rice production
and marketing, cooperatives, politics in Morthern Ghana and the Agriculture
Policies of Liberia. He was appointed the Chairman of the Board on 28”7 June 2009,

Mr. Stephen Kpordzih holds an MBA [Finance ) from University of Leicester, UK, and
a Post-Graduate Cerificate-Strategic Bank Management from Odense Business
School, Denmark. He has to his record immense banking experience and
consuliancy assignments with leading banks, including preparation of a paper cn
Financing Fural Agriculiure in Ghana as par of the Government's Compact
Programme for accessing the USE547 million Millennium Challenge Accounl. He
glzo developed feasibility reports far the establishment of non-bank financial
institutions, One-time lecturer in Finance of International Trade at the Charered
Instiute of Bankars, Ghana, a resource person in Treasury Managamant at the
Ghana Banking College, and an Honoured Member of the Intemational Wiio's Who
of Professionals for his achievements im and contribution to banking, Mr. Kpordzih
took office as the Managing Director of the Bank in August 2008,

Mr. Paul Agyin holds a Bachelor Laws Degres from the University of Ghana, Legon
and & Professional Qualifying Certificate in Law from the Ghana School of Law. He
served in the Attormey-General's Depariment betwaan 1978 and 1984, Between
1884 and 1991, he engaged in private consultancy practice with Maxwell & Maxwell
Law Offices, Liberia and ook the position of Director of Legal Services of the West
African Examinations Councll, Head Office. He joined the Bank as Chief Legal
Advisor in 1981, Bebween June 2003 and July 2005, Mr, Agyiri was seconded to the
Ministry of Finance & Economic Planning as Chief Director, refurning io the Bank to
rasume his position ag Solicior. He was appointed to his current position of Acting
Deputy Managing Director on 1” January 2008,
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HWancy Cakwa AMPOFD
Hon-Executive Directiar

Dr. Samuel K. DAPAAH
MNon-Exscudive Direcior

) ¢

Dr. Johnson P. ASIAMAH
Mon-Exscutive Diracior
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Ms. Nancy Ampofo graduated from the University of Ghana in 1978 with a B_ A,
(Combined) Degrea in Law (with Political Science), She obteined a Professional
Law Qualifying Cerificate in 1981 from the Ghana Law School and was called to the
Ghana Bar on 20" Movember 1981, Ms. Ampofo has had a track record and
expertse in legal consultancy acquired through undertaking legal work for the
public and private sector institulions, as well as individuals and multinationats, Ms,
Ampofo founded her own legal firm, M. D. Ampofo Associates In 2000 and has baen
offering legal consultancy services lo both local and international cliants in all areas
of the law. Shewas appointed as Director ofthe Bank in June 2009

Or. Samuel K. Dapaah has had a long professional experience in Agricultural Policy
and Public Administration, Teaching, Research and Management, He graduatesd
fram the University of Ghana, Legon with a B.5c. (Hons) Agricullure Degree mn Juna
1972 and proceeded o the University of Guelph, Canada where he graduated with
an M.Sc. Agricultural Economics Degree in February 1875 and Ph.D. Agricullural
Economics Degree in February 1982, He returned to the Univarsily of Ghana,
Legon as a Research Fellow at the Institute of Statistical, Social and Ecanomic
Research (ISSER) and Lecturer at the Department of Economics and Department
of Agricultural Economics. Or. Dapaah served in the Ministry of Food and
Agriculiure, first, as Director of Policy, Planning, Monitoring and Evaluation
between 1986 and 1932, and as Chiel Technical Advisor and Chiefl Direclor
between 1993 and 2001, A membear of the Board bebwaen 1583 and 2001, Dr,
Dapaah was reappointed as Director in Junes 2009,

Dr. dohnson P. Asiamah s the Chief Manager, Research Depariment of the Bank of
Ghana. He holds a B_A. (Hons) Degree in Economics with Statistics and an M .Phil.
(Economics) issued by the University of Ghana in 1993 and 1596 respectively, and
a Ph.D. (Economics) Degree from the Liniversity of Southampton, England, United
Kingdom in 2005, With a host of publications and conference presentations to his
record, Dr. Asiamah was appointed to the Board of the Bank in June 2009,
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A Barrister and Solicitor of the Supramea Court of Ghana, Dr. Kwaku Addeahis the
Legal Adviser and Head of the Legal Depariment of the Bank of Ghana, He holds
a BA [Law) fram the Univarsity of Ghana, and LLM and Ph.D from the
Birmingham University, England. Dr. Addeah is & member of tha Ghana Bar
Azsociation and International Bar Association, as well as being an Associate
kember of the Amearican Bar Association. He also chairs the Legal & institutional
Committee of the West African Monetary Zone and an ECOWAS Assessor in
Anti-money Laundering Legal Regimes of ECOWAS countries. He ks currently
the Editor-in-Chief of the 'Banking & Financial Law Journal of Ghana' and has o
his credit a number of publications, Dr. Addeah represents the Financial

5

Dr. Kwaku Addeah  Investment Truet {a subsidiary of the Bank of Ghana) on the Board.
Han-Executlve Directar

kMajor Mahama Tara (Ftd), a Chartered Management Accountant (ACMA) also
hiolds a BSc Administration (Accounting Option) Degrea from the University of
Gshana. His rich experence in the public secior has included serving as Director
of Finance and Administration of the Ghana Tourist Development Company Ltd .,
Director of Finance of the than Architectural and Engineerng Searvices
Corporation, and a Deputy Controller & Accountant-Genaral, At the Ministry of
Finance & Economic Planning, Major Tara (Rid} had previously served at
intervals as Director of Budgels and Acting Chief Director. Among his
achisvements, he headed the Technical Team that re-organized the Budgeting
and Public Expenditure Management System within the Government machinery
Muhas and introduced thie Medium Term Expendifure Framework {MTEF) as the model
“HHLPE;I:HUHE‘- wni;m for Governmental Accounting. He was appointed to the Board in June 2009,

Mr. James Agbedor holds the Bachelor-of-Laws Degres from the University of
Ghana and a Professional Law Certificate from the GGhana School of Law, Ha
joined the Bank in 1885 as a Legal Officer and is currently the Soliciior & Head-
Genaral Counsal of tha Bank. Ha was appointed Sacretary to the Board in 2006.

§)ADB
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Financial Highlights
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Profit for the year (GH¢'000) 12,667.37 14,935.00 |
Change in Profit (%) {15.18) 28.77 |
Dividend per Share (GH¢) 0.08 0.08 |
'Eamings Per Share (GH¢) 0.51 0.60 |
Return on Equity (%) 10.41 13.70
Return on Assets (%) 1.72 2,39 |
Total Assets (GHg'000) 734,595.22 _624,270.00 |
Deposits Base (GHg) 425144.82 319,500.00
Capital Adequacy Ralio (%) 15.85 16.00
Share of Agriculture in Total
Advances (%) 24.09 24.33 |
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Chairman’s Report

It is my priviliege to present to you, the Annual Report and the
Financial Results of your Bank for the year ended 317 December
2009,

1.0 BACKGROUND ANALY SIS

1.1 Developments in the World Economy

The world economy is projecied to have declined by 1.5 percent in
2009 marking a decline in the 2008 growth of 3.4 percent. This

resulted mainly from the world economic recession that also saw Ibirahim ADAM
world trade declining by about 9.4%. Ehikiran

Global GDP growih is expected to be subdued, expanding by 3.2 percent in 2010. This is
expected to resull from the large stimulus programmes, improving private sector confidence and
increased financial stabilization. Richer countries are expected to grow by only 1.7 percent while
the emearging economies will grow by 5.2 percent with China growing at 8.6 percent. Sub-
Saharan Africa is projected to grow by 3.1 percent.

International commaodity prices began recovery from their lows. Crude oil prices (Brent Crude)
bagan the year 2009 declining to its lowest price per barrel of USD36 In February 2008 but
climbed up and ended the year at USDTE. Prospects for sustainable demand and supply
situation will determine the outlook for 2010.

Gold saw a rebound in its price as it opened the year 2009 at U5D865 per ounce but ended the
yaarat USD1, 114, Similarly, Cocoa rose from USD2 520 at the beginning of 2009 and ended the
yearatUsD3,271.

1.2 Domestic Economy

Provigional real GDP growth was 4.7 percent and fell below the projected target of 5.9 percent
for the year 2009. This was againsl the real GODP growth of 7.3 parcent in 2008. The growth rata
recorded was in spite of the negative impact of the global economic and financial crises and the
huge fiscal daficits that the economy recorded in 2008 and its attendant effects on economic
performance.

The beginning of the year saw some dislocations in the economy characterized by foreign
exchange rate instability and rising inflation and interest raies all resulling from the prior year
fiscal imbalances and the global economic crises.

Tighter and prudent fiscal policies of Government resulted in a significant reduction in the overall
budget deficit of 5.2 percent of GDP compared with 13.6 percent of GDP for 2008. This has
resulted in a decline in the Government's Public Sector Borrowing Requirement with the
attendantfall in the rates of Government's investment instruments.

The current account deficit narrowed from USD 3.5 billion in December 2008 to USD 1.2 billionin
December 2009, The aconomy recorded an overall balance of payments surplus of USD1.2
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billion compared to the USD 0.9 billion recorded in 2008. These resulted in the improvament of
the external reserves position from USD 2.0 billion in 2008 to USD 3.2 billion in December 2009
with an impaort cover of 3 months against the 2.1 months recorded at the end of 2008,

The cedi was under pressure dunng the first and second quarters of year 2009 but registered
some gains in the latter half. The yvear closed with depreciation rates of 23.81 percent and 15.38
percent against the GBF and the USD respectively in the inter-bank market. This compared with
an appreciation of 8.03 percent for the GBP in 2008 and a depreciation of 20.89 percent for the
LUSD. It depreciated against the EURO by 17.23 percent in 2009 as against a depreciation rate of
17.30 percent in 2008.

Mominal Value of GHS in USD

&
lan Fﬁl I.Fﬂl"-'!r My hin Jul Al Sep Cet Mo D

B .

(5.00] : 5
3 n .
= {210,000 - — T
; % n o = 2009
1500 : [

{20,000 &

|25.00]

The economy was under an inflaionary pressure in the first half of the year as the year-on-year
inflation rate peaked at 20.74 percent in June 2008 before declining consistently to 15.97
parcent in December 2008, The decline in inflation was from both food and non-food sources
with the non-food source exerting a stronger downward force than food inflation coming mainly
from the impact of the 30 percent rise in petroleum prices in May 2009,
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Interest rates went up in the first three quarters of the year with the 91-day Treasury Bill rate
baginning the year at 24 67 parcent. It rose steadily to the peak of 25.88 percant in September
2009 before declining to 22.53 percent in December 2008. The year began with the Prime Rate
of Bank of Ghana at 17.00 percent. The rale was increased to 18,50 percent in February 2000
and remained at that level until November 2002 when it was reduced fo 18.00 percent.

91-Day Treasury Bill - Interest
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Similarly the 182-day Treasury bill rate went up from 26.18 percent at the baginning of the year to
28.88 percentin Movember before declining to 25.30 percent at end December 2009,

20 PERFORMANCE OF THEBANK

The Bank's performance for the period under review was highly influenced by the international
and domeslic economic developments during the yvear as indicabed above.

21 Profit and Loss Performanco

The net profit for 2009 was GHg 12,67 million and was 15.14 percent lower than the GH¢14 .83
million recorded for 2008. The challenges presented by credit management required that
additional provisions wara made to further clean the loan book of the Bank, Impairments charged
forthe yeartherefore increased from GH¢6. 9 million in 2008 to GH¢ 1589 million in 2008,

2.2 Balance Shoot

The balance sheet of the Bank showed moderate growth in the financial year 2008, Total assets
arew by 17.67 percent from GH¢G24.27 million at the end of December 2008 to GH¢734.57
million at year end December 2008. Total deposits also rose from GH¢E318.50 million to
GHg425.14 million and showed a growth of 33.07 percent as against 17.89 percent in 2008.
Shareholders’ funds also went up by 11.90 percent from GH¢108.68 million at the end of
December 2008 to GHE121.62 million atthe end of 2009,

2.3 Dividend Payment

The Directors recommanded the payment of total dividend of GH¢2.0 million to its shareholders

v9’ADB
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for year 2009, This translates into a dividend per shara of GHg0.08, the same as in 2008.
3.0 SUPPORTTOTHEAGRICULTURALSECTOR

The Bank remainad committed to financing the productive agncultural sector of the economy in
line with its mission and practice. Total new credit disbursed for various agricultural projects was
GHeST.91 million in 2008 almost equal to the GHEST .53 million recorded in 2008, The stock of
credit to the sector however declined from GHg116.15 million at the end of December 2008 to
GH¢111.30 million at the end of December 2009 with a negative ratio of 4.17 percent. The share
of the sector's loan portfolio declined from 27 87 parcent at the and of December 2008 1o 25.46
percent atend December 2009,

40 CHANGESIN BOARDAND MANAGEMENT

During the year 2009 the Board of the Bank was reconstituted. The reconstituted Board under
the Chairmanship of Alhaji Ibrahim Adam is made up of the following: Dr. Samuel K. Dapaah,
Major (Rtd) M. 5. Tara, Dr. Johnson Asiamah, Ms. Nancy Dakwa Ampofo and Dr. Kwaku Addea.

Mr. Stephen Kpordzih assumed office as the substantive Managing Director after the exit of Mr.
Yaw Opoku Atuahene. Mr. Paul Ofori Agyiri was also appointed as Executive Director.
Additionally, the restrucluring process currently going on in the Bank has necessitated the
appointment of certain key top management staff to help steer the process to ensure the
attainment of the set objectives.

We wish to take the opportunity fo congratulate the Board and the key management members
and wish them a successful stay in the Bank.

5.0 STRATEGIC PLANZ01D -2012

The strategic challenges facing the Bank upon the assumption of office of your Board
necessitated the change inits strategic direclion. The new direction seeks to balance the market
orientation with a development focus on agriculture and other services. We would emphasize
the attainmeant of both financial and social returns to impgrove the socio-economic value of our
shareholders as well as key stakeholders of the Bank.

The Board has accordingly given approval for the implementation of various key structural
changes and initiatives, This has also culminated in the development of a new strategic plan
which is currently under review.

6.0 THE WAY FORWARD

The year 2010 looks certain o be vary axciting as the domestic and global economias lake
shape and retum to growth. The Bank's roll out of the initiatives under the strategic change
agenda will continue, The Bank will also follow key policy initiatives of the Government and
leverage on them. Plans are underway to ensure the doubling of the Bank's invesiment in the
agricultural sector to support the Governments economic development agenda based on
modernized and mechanized agriculture. With the creation of the Credit Risk Management
Department, we are firmly of the view that your Bank's credit portfolio would be managed in a
more prudent way to reduce the level of non parforming loans. Strong efforts would be pursued
to recover advances to boost the liquidity position of the Bank.

Fapc 1 1
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7.0 CONCLUSION

| take this opportunity on behalf of the Board to congratulate our shareholders and customers for
their continued support over the years, | also congratulate the Management and staff for their
hard work and commitment to duty and pray for a successful year 2010,

ALHAJIIERAHIM ADAM
BOARD CHAIRMAMN

Paoc 12
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Executive Management

Paul 0. AGY

Stephen KPORDZMH Daputy Managing Direciar

Manisging Dirscios

James K, AGBEDOR Adam U, SULLEY 5 M. 5 ABBEY
Booamrd Secrecary & Fend, Ganeml Counssl Exacutive Hand, Retail Bankirg Euscutiva Head, Oparmtians

ﬁ.bduirﬁumnd IDDRISU .famnu. Baidos SAGOE Bernard Appiah GYEBI
Evecutive Hapd, Transaclion Banking & Tech Exscufioe Hasd, Fingnce & Plaming  Exsculive Hesd, Crecl Fiak Maragesnieni
Edward ARMAH-MENSAH Akwalley A BULLEY George BAAH-DANGLUIAH
Exacilive Haap, Conporats Banking Hesd, Human Rasoainssas TrasBLrs
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Managing Director’s Review of Operations

INTRODUCTION

| am happy to prasent to you the Bank's operational activities and perdformance for the year
ended 31" December, 2009, We ook aver the administration of the Bank at a very critical ime
when economic events in and outside Ghana had taken a nosedive and the banking industry was
confronted with a number of challenges, The Bank itself operated with a business model that was
not in line with modern banking trend while offering very limited product and service delivery
channals. This required that Managemeant had to do a review of tha entire organization and
prescribe a new sirategic and operational direction that would redefing its structures, unleash
naw capabilities and improve business processes for efficlent operations. Consaqueantly,
Management, together with the support of the Board of Directors initiated the Bank's change and
ransformation process.

The Bank, with the support of its esteemed customers and staff emerged out of these difficulties
with renewed commitment to fransform its operations into a modem universal bank with defined
commitment to growing its agriculture portfolio.

KEY INITIATIVES

Management, with the approval from the Board of Directors, developed a new organizational
structure that intreduced several new businass lines including the establishmant of the following:
Corporate, Retail, Development Finance and Transaction Banking and Technology
Departmaents. This was to align structure to strateqy.

Management also reviewed the existing human resources, recruited highly skilled and
competent individuals to man cerdain key departments to ensure that the necessary human
resourcas are available for the successful implementation of the change agenda of the Bank.

NEW BRANCHES

Three new branches were added to the Bank's branch network during the yvear and these
included the UCC, Accra Mew Town and Makola branches. The addition increased the number of
branches from fifty-two to fifty-five at the end of year 2009

OPERATIONAL RESULTS
LOANS TOAGRICULTUREANDALLIED SECTORS

Credit to the agricultural and allied sectors amounted to GH¢111.30 million and represented
25,00 percent share of credits as at the end of the year 2009 as against the 27.87 percent
recorded in December 2008, New credit o the productive sector during the year amounted to
SHg11.31 million while that of the agro-processing sub-sector amounted to GHgS7 .91 million.
The pie charl below gives a pictorial view of the sectoral analysis of the Bank's credit portfolio at
the end of December 2009.

&ADB
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BECTORAL ANALYSIS OF ADVANCER
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PROFIT PERFORMANCE

Net profit for the year under review was GH¢12.67 million as against GHg¢14.93 million in 2008
showing a decrease of 15.18 percent. This translaies into Return on Assets and Return on Equity
ratios of 1.82 percent and 10.96 percent respectively compared with ratios of 2.39 percent and
13.74 parcentin 2008,

RESOURCE MOBILIZATION
Total deposits grew by 33.07 percant from GH¢319.50 milhon in December 2008 to GH¢425.14

million at the end of December 2009 compared fo the increase of 17.89 percent in December
2008. The graph below depicts trends in deposit growth of the Bank since 2000.

DEPOSIT PROFILE (GHS 'MILLION)
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ASSET GROWTH

Total assets grew by 17.67 percent from GH¢E24.27 million in December 2008 o GH¢T34.57
million in December 2008 compared with the growth of 3420 percent recorded in 20038. This
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growih was recorded mainly on account of expansion in investments of 45.67 percent and cash
and short term funds of 9518 percent. Credit growth was only 0.61 percent.

STRUCTURE OF TOTAL ASSETS

BOO.OD
00,00
E00.00
m PPE
S00.00
W Cabeoy Ak
400,00
m Adviries

W IPEEDmManis

B Cash 5T Funsds

300.00 '
200.00 3 '
- 238

0.00 :

L

STRATEGIC PLAN 2010-2012

Implementation of key components of the Bank's new sirategic plan began in earnestin the year.
The first is the Board's approval and subsequent implementation of the new organizational
structure, This seeks to align the Bank's structure to its functions and strategy to enhance
performance and make the Bank competitive. This required the recruitment of certain key
parsonnel both internal and external with the requisite skills and capabilities to drive the change
process. Also, staff placement in areas of their key competencies was initiated. Additionally, with
the support of the Board, Management began developing a new strategic plan that will drive the
change agenda from 2010 to 2012. The main objective is to make the Bank a modern universal
Bank, more compelitive in the industry and position it to be one of the top four banks, We will
pursue this by maintaining the Bank's development focus on agrcullure while dalivering several
other products and services.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Bank continued with ifs sponsorship package for the Mational Best Farmer's award and
made several other donations as part of its corporate social responsibility programmeas
amounting to GH¢492,140 as against GH¢361,044 in year 2008.

OUTLOOK FOR YEAR 2010

The outlook for year 2010 appears positive as the world economy recovars from chisis to growth
and the domestic economy has achieved a relative stability due io the prudent fiscal and
monetary policies embarked upon by the Governmeant. Our key challenges would include the
successful implementation of the new strategic plan, ensuring a healthy loan book and providing
quality services to our customers.,

Papc 16
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Additionally, we are committed to building a new technology platform that will be leveraged for
more service offerings and improved working infrastrecture to make our operations efficient and
less cumbersome, Transachon Banking & Technology Department has been set up to lead this
transformation. The transaction banking section will concentrate on product development and
support, together with sales and marketng including cash management, call cantre, cards
izsue, mobile and internet banking producis. The technology section will also provide the key
support backbone including the data centre, technology infrastructure and secunty. We plan
upgrade the axisting Flexcube platform to a more currant version in order o support the product
transformation and development process and ensure efficiency in operations.

The Bank will also fully set up a new Assat Finance Unit lo undertake leasing and hire purchase
product operations. Of significant importance is the sale of farming equipment to owur
hardworking farmers and fishermen including outboard motors.

We will continue to extend our branch expansion programme to areas where our services will be
avallable to existing and new clients, especially to the couniry’s hardworking farmers, We
envisage the establishment of seventeen (17) new branches and six agencies during the plan
period from 2010 to 2012, In the first year, eight (8) new branches and four agencies will be
established.

CONCLUSION

| wish o express my heartfell appreciation to the Board and the shareholders for their
unreleniing support to the Bank in 2009, | take the opportunity also to express my sincere
gratitude to the staff for their cooperation and understanding even as we go through our
transformation process. | wish also to thank our loyal and dedicated customers for patronizing
our serices, We assure them of well desarved services as we vigorously implemant our new
strategy.

HEN KPORDZIH
MANAGING DIRECTOR

$2ADB
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Financial Statements

Hﬂpnn ﬂi thﬂ ni rﬂﬂ.{ﬂrﬁ Lo the Mambers of Agrcultural Development Bank

Principal Activity

The principal activities carried out by the Bank during the year under review were within the limits
permitted by its regulations.

Cperational Results - 2008

The results of the operations for the vear ended 31 December 2002 are gsetoutin the statement of
comprehansive incomea and statement of financial position and the notes to the financial
statements from pages 7 to 53.

The bank achieved a profit of GHg12 667,366 as compared with the performance of
GH¢ 14,934 880 in 2008. The total assets of the bank grew from GHg624,270,478 in 2008 to
GH¢734 595 216 in 2009 achieving 17.7% growth while deposit liabilities recorded a 33.1%
growth from GHg319,499 830 in 2008 to GHg425,144 815in 2008.

Dividend

The directors recommend the payment of a dividend of Eight Ghana pesewas per shang,
(GH¢0.08/share) amounting to Two Million (GH¢2,000,000) for the year,

Auditors

The directors recommend that, Messrs Deloitte & Touche will continue in office as auditors of the
bank in accordance with the Agricutural Development Bank Act 1965 (Act 286) as amended by
NLCD 182 of 1967 and Act 352 of 1970,

Directors

The present list of members of the board are shown on page 3.

O behalf of the Board

Bkl kD

Alhaji lbrahim Adam Mr. Stephen Kpordzih
Chairman Managing Director

\1 __L—:J_-j—" -_-?L-.

L o J——
Mz Mancy Ampaofo Mr. James Baidoo Sagoe Mr. James K. Agbedor
Director Exaculive Head/Finance & Planning Secrelary
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibility

The Agncultural Development Bank Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the siate of affairs of the bank as at the end of
the financial year and of the operating results of the bank for that year,

It also requires the directors to ensure that the bank keeps proper accounfing records which
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial positon of the bank. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the bank.

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards,  This responsibility
includes: designing, implemenfing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparafion
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatemeant, whether
due to fraud or error, selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.,

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been
prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent
judgements and estimates, in conformity with Intematicnal Financial Reporing Standards and in
the mannar required by the Agrcultural Developmeant Bank Act. Tha directors are of the opinion
that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial affairs of the bank
and of its operating results. The directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of
accounting records which may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as well
as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Mothing has come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the bank will not remain a going
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

J?F‘ "‘l“‘l‘w *‘—@

Alhajl Ibrahim Adam pr-Slephen Kpordzih

Chairman Managing Director
—_——— '—"*-,.}

PO O o I

Mz Nancy Ampofo Mr. James Baidoo Sagos

Diractor Executive Haad/Financea & Planning Saecretary
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'“dEI]EI“IE“t Auditur'.s HEFH" to the Members of Agricultural Development Bank

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Agrculiural Development Bank on
pages 7 to 53 which compnse the statement of financial position as at 31 December, 2009, and
stalement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cashfiows
for the year then ended, together with the summany of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, and have ablained all informaton and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Directors' responsibility for the financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the Agricutural Development Bank Act 18965 (Acl 286) as
amended by NLCD 182 of 1967 and Act 352 of 1970. These responsibilities include: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal contrals relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
ara reasonable in the circumslances.

Auditors® Responsibility

Cwur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial staterments based on our audit. We
conducted our audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Thesa standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perdform the awudit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial stalements are free from material
misstatement.

An audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence aboul the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or emor. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal controis. An audit also includes avaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evvaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

DOpinion

In our opinion, the bank has kept proper accounting records and the financial statemeants ara in
agreament with the records in all material respects and give In the prescribed manner,
information required by the banking Act 2004 (Act 673) as amended by the Banking
{Amendment) Act of 2008 (Act 738) and Agricutural Development Bank Act 1965 (Act 286) as
amended by NLCD 182 of 1967 and Act 352 of 1970. The financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial positon of the bank as at 31 December 2009, and of its financial
performance and cash flow for the year then ended and are drawn up in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards.
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Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Agricutural Development Bank Act 1965 (Act 286) as amended by NLCD 182 of 1967 and
Act 352 of 1970 requires that in carrying out our audit work we consider and report on the
following matters. We confirm that:

i we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necassary for the purpases of our audit;

ii. in our opinion proper books of accounts have been kept by the bank, so far as appears
fromourexamination of those books: and

fil. the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income of the bank
are in agreement with the books of accounts.

The Banking Act 2004 (Act 673), Section 7B (2), requires that we state certain matters in our
report. We hereby state that:

l. the accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the bank and its results for
the period under review;

i, we were able o obtain all the information and explanation required for the efficient
performance of our duties as auditors;

iii. thie banks transactions were within its powears; and
iv. the bank has compliad with the provisions in the Banking Act 2004 (Act 673), the Banking

(Amendment) Act 2008 (Act 738) and the Agricultural Development Bank Act 1965 (Act
288) as amended by NLCD 182 of 1967 and Act 352 of 1970,

_I:'\L.lml[‘i.t i '

Chartered Accountants
Accra, Ghana

24th March. 2010

'ADB

ik L O O e
g de o,
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Annual Report & Fieancinl Sletements -

Statement of Comprehensive INCOME for the year ended 31 December 2000

Note
Interast income 5]
Interast expensea [
Met interest income
Fee and commission income B
Met fee and commission iNcome
Other operating income 10
Met Non-Interest Revenue
Operating income
Impairmeant losses on loans and advances 18
Opearating expenses 11

Other Income
Other Expenses

Profit before National Stabilization Levy
Mational Stabilization Levy

Profit after National Stabilization Levy

Faoc 22

2009 2008
GHeg GHeg
81,415,038 50,688,000
(39,603,155) (20,474,861
41812783 39,214,030
28,627,183 26,065,202
28,627,193 26,065,202
6,548,424 10,152,985
35,175,617 36,218,277
76,988,400 75,432,316
(15,896,510) (6,923, 148)
(61,947,745) (57,292,114}
15,852 975 6,137,686
(1,663,051) (2,419,852)
13,334,069 14,934,890
(666,703) -

12 667,366

e e PP
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Annual Report & Fieancinl Sletements -

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 pecember 2009

Note
Assets
Cash and balances with Ceaniral Bank of Ghana 14
Gov'l securities 15
Deposits and balances due from banking institutions 16
Other investmeanis 17
Loans and advances to cuslomers (nat) 18
Other assels 19
Long Term Investment
Property and egulpmeant 20
Tolal assels
Liabilities
Customer deposils 21
Borrowed funds 22
Other Babilities 23
Total liabilities
Capital resources
Share capital 24
Rewvaluation surplus
Income surplus
Credit Risk Resarve

Stalutory resen/a

Shareholders’ funds

Total liabilities and shareholders funds

2008
GHg

75,880,543
125,593,869
48 952 151
7.257.819
a72 864,056
73,745 535
5,200,877
25 058 BBE

734 565 216

425 144 815
88,201,147
899 602,073

612.948,035

50,000,000
15,371 581

6,949 811
21,936,348
27 350 441

121,617,181

734 565 216

2008
GHe

41 BBT 152
87,323,906
22.077,304
6,171,070
370,606 658
72599471
1,276,100
22 328 817

[

624,270,478

== 4 ]

319,499,930
108,372,163
&7,717,161

[

515,588 254

[

50,000,000
13,102,800
13,052 384

5,033 168
25 B92 BB2

[

108,681,224

[

624,270,478

== 4 ]

The financial statements on pages 18 to 70 ware approved by the board of directors on 24th
March 2010 and were signed on i1z behall by:

PR S

Alhaji Ibrahim Adam
Chaimian

|
TALE Lo b
M3 Mancy Ampaofo
Director

i )
7

S

Mr-.lamesﬂiul:lﬂu Sagoe
Executive HeadFinance & Planning

Pacc 2.3

hir. .E“l.ﬂi:lhﬁll'l Rﬁnrﬁlzlh
Managing Director

___6.__2—-—=l5;-;

Mr. James K. Agbedor

Secretary
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Annual Report & Fieancinl Sletements -

cﬂﬁhﬂﬂw SIEIEIIIEIII for the year ended 31 December 2009

Operating activities
Cash generated from operations

Investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceads from disposal of property and aquipment
Increase in other mvesiment securities

Met cash used in investing activities

Dividend paid
Mational Stabilization Levy

Financing activities
Receipis/(payments) in borrowed funds
Increase in Credit Resarve

Met cash generated from financing activities

Increase in cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Faoc 25

Hote

25

20

25

2009 L00E
GHe¢ GH¢
126,503,194  (82,996,806)
(4,B00,969) (2,982 066)
91 841 85,001
(1,086,749) =
(5,795,877)  (2,897875)
(1,000,000) (1,000,000}
{287,500)
(20,171,018) 74,472,543
: 5,033 168
(20,171,016) 80,405,711
99,148,801  (6,488,970)
151 288,362 157,777,332
250,437,163 151,288,362
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Annual Report & Fieancinl Sletements -

Notes to the financial statements o e year ended 31 December 2009

1. Reporting entity

Agriculiural Development Bank (ADB) is a finandcial institution incorporated in Ghana, The
registered office of the Agricultural Development Bank is located at 37 Independence Avenue,
Accra. The Agricuttural Development Bank operates under the Banking Act, 2004 (Act 673) as
amended by the Banking (Amendment} Act of 2008 (Act 738), and the Agricultural
Development Bank Act 1965 (Act 286)as amended by NLCD 182 of 1967 and Act 352 of 1970.

- A Basis of preparation
a. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) and its interpretations as adopted by the International Accounting
standards Board (IASE) In accordance with the transitional requirements of these
standards, ADB has provided full comparative information.

b. Basis of measuremant

The financial statements are presenied in Ghana cedis which is ADB's functiomal currency,
rounded (o the nearest thousand. They are prepared on the historical cost basis except for the
following assets and liabiities that are stated at their fair value; financial instruments that are
fair value through profit and loss and financial instruments classified as available-for-sale. An
explanation of how the transition to IFRS has affected the reported financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the ADB is provided in note 33 to the financial statements,

c. Useofestimated and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The esfimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical expenence and various other faciors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgement about carmying values of assets and hiabilities that are not readily apparent from
othersources, Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the penod in which the estimate B revised i the
revision affects onty that period orin the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods,  In particular, information about significant areas of
estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the
mast significant effect on the amount recognisaed in the finencial statements are descrnbed in
notesone (1),

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for afl inferesi-beanng financial instrumenis, except for thosa
classified as held for trading or designated as fair value through profit and loss, are recognized
within interest income and interest expense in the statement of comprehensve income using
the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that exacily discounts the
estimated future cash payments and receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of the financial asset or
liability. The effective interest rate is established on initial recognition of the financial asset and
liability
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Notes to the financial statements o the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

1. Significantaccounting policies
interast income and expense

Interast income includes interest on loans and advances and placemants with other banks, and
is recognised in the perod inwhichit s earmed.

Feas and comimissions

Foa and commission incomes and axpenses thal ame integral 1o the effective interest rate on
fimnancial instruments ane included in the measurement of the effective intarest rate.

Other fees and commissions income ang recognised as tha related services are paformad.
Government securities

Governmient securities comprise treasury bills and treasury bonds which are debt securities
issued by the Government of Ghana. These are classified as held to maturity and are stated at
amortised cost.

Unquoted investments

Unguoted investmenis are stated at cost less impaimient loss where applicable.

Investments in companias

Investmenis incompanies are stated at cost less impaiment loss wherne applicable.

Assels held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carnying amount will be recovered through a sale
tranzsaciion rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset iz available for immediaie sale in its present condition.
Management must be commiiied to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for

recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the asseis previous camying
amount and fair value less costs io sell.

FProparty and egquipmant

Properiy and equipment are stated at cost or as professionally revalued from time to time less
accumulated depreciation.

Increases in the carrying amount ansing on revaluation are credited to a revaluation surplus.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against the revaluation
surplus. All other decreases are charged to the statement of comprehensive income. Each
year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset
ithe depreciation charged to the statement of comprehensive income) and depreciation based
on the asset's original costis transferred from the revaluation surplus to revenue resenes.
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HI“EE to thﬂ Iiﬂﬂnﬂiﬂi statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

1.  Accounting policies - ([continued)
Depraciation
Freahold land s not depreciated as it is desmed to have an indafinite life.

Depraciation on other property and equipment is calculated to write off thair cost or valuation in
equal annual instalments over their estimated useful ives. The annual rates In use are:

Buildings 5%
Computers 33.33%
Motor vehicles 33.33%
Furniture and aquipments 20%

WWhere the carrving amount of an asset is greater than its estimaied recoverable amount, it is
written down immediately toits recoverable amount.

Leasehold land
Faymenis to acquire leasehold interest in land are treated as operating lease prepayments and
amorised over the period of the lease.

Computer software development cosis

Generally, costs associated with developing computer software programmes are recognised
as an expense when incurmed. However, costs that are clearly associated with an identifiable
and unique product which will be controlled by the bank and has a probable benefit exceeding
the costbeyond one year, are recognised as an intangible asset.

Expenditure which enhances and extends computer software programmes beyond their
original specifications and lives is recognised as a capital improvement and added to the
original costs of the software

Computer sofiware development cosis recognised as asseis are siated at cost less
amaortisation.

Amortisation is calculated on a straight ling basis over the estimated useful lives not exceeding
a penod of 3 years.

Taxation
The Bank is not liable to taxation.

Foreign currencies

Agzets and liabilites expressed in foreign curencies are translated into Ghana Cedis at the
rates of exchange ruling at the date of the staiement of financial position.  Transactions during
the year are translated at the rates ruling at the dates of the fransactions. (Gains or losses on
exchange are dealt with in the statement of comprehensive income

Offsetting
Financial assets and liabilites are offsel and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneousty
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HI“EE to thﬂ fiﬂﬂlll:iﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

1. Accounting policies - {continued)

Statutory Credit Risk Resarve

1AS 36 requires the bank to recognise an impairment loss when there is objective evidence that
Ioans and advances are impalred.  Howewver, Central Bank of Ghana prudential guidelines
raquira the bank to sel aside amounts for impairmeant losses on loans and advancas in addition
to thosa losses that have been recognised under A3 36,  Any such amounts set aside
represent appropriations of retained eamings and not expansas in determining profit or loss.
Thesa amounts are dealt with in the statutory credit reserve. The provision for this additonal
Impairment amounts is o ba made only when impairment amounts provided under IFRS rules
ara lower than the flgure to ba provided under Boi Prudential Guidelinas.

Retirement benefit costs

The bank operates a defined contribution benafit scheme for its employees. The assets of this
scheme is held by the treasury department of the bank. The scheme is funded by coniributions
from both the employees and employer. Benefits are paid to retiring staff in accordance with the
scheme rules.

The bank akso contributes to the statutory Social Security & Mational Insurance Trust (SSMIT)
This is a defined contribution scheme registered under the National Social Secunty Act. The
bank's chligations under the scheme are limited to specific contributions legislated from time to
time and are currenily imited to a maximum of 12.5% of an employee's basic salary per month.
The bank’s obligations to staff retirement benefit schemes ame charged to the statement of
comprehensive incoma in the year towhich they relate.

Provision for employee entitfements

Employee entitements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue o employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave accrued at the date of the statement
of financial position,

Financial instruments
A financial asset or liability is recognised when the bank becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets

The bank classifies iis financial assets into the following categones: Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss; [oans, advances and receivables; held- to- maturity investments;
and available-for-gsale assets. Management determines the appropriate classification of its
investments atinifial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: Financial asseis held for trading and those designated
at fair value through statement of comprehensive income at inception. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if
s0 designated by management.

Loans, advances and receivables

Loans, advances and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the bank provides money,
goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading the receivable. Loans and
advances are recognized when cash is advanced fo bommowers.  They are categorized as
orginated loans and camed at amortised cost,
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HIIIES to thﬂ Iiﬂﬂnﬂiﬂi statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

1.  Accounting policies - (continued)

Financial ingtrumenis (Continued)

Held to maturity

Held-to-maturity Investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities that management has the positive intenfion and ability to hald to
maturity, Where a sale occurs, other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity assets, the
enlire category would be tainted and classified as available for sala.

Available-for-sale financial assols

Financial asseis that are not {a) finencial assets at fair value through the statement of
comprenensive income, (b) loans, advances and recelvables, or () financial assets held o
maturity.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus iransaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through the statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to recelve cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the bank has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownearship,

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans, advances and receivables and held-to-maturify
invastments are carried at amaortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and lossas
arsing from changes in the fair value of “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™ ara
inctuded im the statement of comprehensive incoma in the perod in which they arise. Gains and
lossas arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets ara recognised
direcly in equity, unfil the financial asset is derecognised or impaired, at which time the cumulative
gainor loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in the satement of comprahensive
income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the statement of
comprahensive incomea when tha bank's right ko receive paymant is established.

Fair values of guoled investments in active markets are based on quoted bid prices. Equity
securifies forwhich fair values cannof be maasured raliably are measured at cost less impaimeant,

Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets
Al each date of the statement of financial position, all inancial assets are subject to review for
impairment,

If it iz probable that the bank will not be able o collect all amounts due [principal and interest)
according to the contractual terms of [oans, receivables, or hald-to-maturity investments carried at
amoriised cost, an impairment or bad debt loss has occurred. The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its astimated recovarable amount through usa of an allowancs account.  The amountaf
the loss incwrrad is includaed in the statement of comprehensive income for the perod.

If & loss on & financial assat carned at fair value (recoverable amount is balow ongimal acquisition
cast) has been recognised directly in equity and there is objective evidence that the asset s
impaired, the cumulative net loss that had beean recognised directy in aquity is removed from equity
and recognised in the statement of comprehensive income for the pericd even though the financial
assel has not been derecognised.

The bank considers evidence of impairment at both a specific asset and collective level. Al
individually significant financial assets are assessed for specific impairment, All significant assels
found nof to be specifically impaired are then collectively assessad for any impairment that has
bean mcurred but not yet identived. Assats that are not individually significant are then collectively
asseased forimpairment together with financial assets with similar risk characteristics.
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Notes to the financial statements o the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

1. Accounting policies (continued)
Impairment and uncollectability of financial assets

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include observable data that comes
to the attention of the bank about the following loss events:

. Significant financial difficulty of the borrower

£ default or delinquency by a borrower,

. restructuring of a loan or advance by the bank on terms that the bank would not otherwise
consider,

. indications that a borrower or lssuar will enter bankrupicy,

. the disappearance of an active market for a security, or

. other cbservable data relating to a group of assels such as adverse changes in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers in the group, or economic conditions that
correlate with defaulis in the group.

In assassing collective impalrment the bank uses statistical modelling of historlcal trends of the
probability of default, timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurmed, adjusted for
management’s judgement as to whather cument economic and credit conditions are such that
the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggestad by historical modalling. Default
rates, loss rates and the expected timing of Tulure recoveries are regulary benchmarked
againsl actual outcomes to ensure that thay remain appropriate.

a. Assels carried atl amortised cost

Impairment losses on assels carrled at amortised cost are measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the financial assets and the presant value of estimated cash
flows discounted af the assels’ original effective inferest rale. Losses are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income and reflected in an allowance account against loans and
advances. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognized through the unwinding of
the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of impaiment loss to decrease, the
Impabrment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

b. Aszzets carried ail Fair value

Impairment losses on available-for-sake investment securities are recognisad by transferring
the diference batween the amortised acquisition costand currant fair valus out of equity to the
statemeant of comprehensive income. When a subseqguent event causes the amouni of
impalment loss on an available-for-sale deb securily to decrease, the impairmant loss Iz
reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

However, any subsequent recovery in the fair value of an impaired available-for-sake aguity
sacurity is recognised directly in equity. Changes in impairment provisions attributable to time
value are reflacted as a component of interast income.

3 Renegotiated loans
Loans thal are either subject o collective impairmen! assessmen! or Individually significant
and whose terms have been renegoliated are no longer considerad to be past due but are

treated as new loans. In subsequent years, the renegotiated terms apply in determining
whether the asset is considerad to be past due.
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HI“EE to thﬂ Iiﬂﬂnﬂiﬂi statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

1.  Accounting policies {(continued)

Financial labilities
Debl and equity instrumenis are classifled. as either financial liabilities or as eguity in
acoordance with the substance of the coniraciual agreament

After inifial recognition, the bank measures all financial labilities including customer deposiis
and borrowings other than liabilities held for trading at amortised cost. Liabilities held for trading
ifinancial Habilities acquired principally for the purpose of generating a profit from shorl-term
fluctuations In price or dealer's margin} are subsaguenily measured at their fair values.

Interast-bearing borrowings are Initially measured at fair value, and are subseguently
measurad al amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. Any difference betwean
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the seltement or redemption of borrowings s
racognisad over the term of the borrowings.

Repurchase agresmenttransactions

Securities purchased from the Central Bank of Ghana under agreemeants to reseall (* reverse
rapos”), are dizclosed as balances with the Central Bank of Ghana as they are held to maturity
after which they are repurchased and are not negotiable/discounted during the tenure. The
difference between the sale and repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life
of the repurchase agreement using the effective yield method.

Loasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
allthe risks and rewards of ownership to the lessea. All other leases are classified as operaling
leases.

The Bank as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of
the Bank's net invesiment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated o accouniing
penods 30 as o reflect a constant periodic rate of retum on the Bank's net investment
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

The Bank as lessog
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged o income on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

Contingent labilities

Letters of credit, acceptances, guarantees and performance bonds are generally written by the
bank to support perfformance by a customer to third paries. The bank will only be required
to meet these obligations in the event of the customer’s default,

Fiduciary activities

Assets and income arising thereon together with related undertakings to retum such assets to
customers are excluded from these financial siatements where the bank acts in a fiduciary
capacity such as nominee, trustee or agent.
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Notes to the financial statements ror the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

1.  Accounting policies - (continued)

Cash and cash eqguivalenis

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include short term liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which wera within
thres months of maturity when acquired, less advances from banks repayable within thraa
months from the dates of the advances.

Dividends
Dividends are charged 1o eguity in the percd in which thay are declared. Proposad dividends
are not accrued until they have been ratified at the Annual General Meeating.

Segmental reporting

A segment s a distinguishable component of the group that is engaged either in providing
products or services (business segment), or in providing producis or services within a
particular economic environment {geographical segment), which is subject 1o risks and
reswards that are different from those of other sagmanis.

Comparatives
Whera necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted o conform with changes in
presantation in the currant year,
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HI“EE to thﬂ Iiﬂﬂnﬂiﬂi statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

Standards, amendments and interpretations effective in 2009

The Bank has adopiad the following new standards, amendments and interpretations as at 1
January 2009,

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The amended standard requiras additional
disclosuras about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair value measurements relatad
to items recorded at fair value are to be disclosed by source of inputs using a three level fair
valua hierarchy, by class, for all financial instruments recognised at fair value. In addition, are
raconciliation between the baginning and ending balance for level 3 fair value measuremeants is
now required, as well as significant transfers between levels in the fair value hierarchy, The
amendmenis also clarify the requirements for liquidity risk disclosures with respect to derivative
transactions and assets used for liquidity management. Estimated fair value is the amount at
which an instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties other
than enforced or liguidation sale

- The Bank has concluded that the fair value of financial instruments approximate fo their
carrying amounis as they bear variable interast rates determined under market conditions.

- IFRS 8 Operating Segments, This standard requires disclosure of information about the
company's operating segments and replaced the requirement to determine primary (business)
and secondary (geographical) reporting sagments of the company. IFRS B replaces |AS 14
Segment Reporting upon effective date. |FRS 8 disclosures are shown in note 29,

- 1AS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial Statemeants. The Standard separatas owner
and non-owner changeas in equity. The statement of changeas in equity will include only details of
transactions with owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented as a singke lina. In
addition, the Standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income, which presents
incoma and expensa items recognised in profit or loss, together with all other tems of
recognised income and expense, either in one single statemeant, or in two linked statements.
The Bank has elected to present comprehansive income in one single statement and it has nat
provided a restated comparative set of financial position for the earliest comparative period, as
it has not adopted any new accounting policies retrospectively, or has a refrospactive
rastatement, or retrospectively reclassified items in the financial statemeants,

- 1AS 23 Borrowing Costs. The revised |AS 23 requires capitalisation of borrowing costs that
ara directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a gualifying asset.
Dwuring the year, thera wera no borrowings for the acquisition of capital assets.

- A5 32, Amendments to L&S 32 Financial Insiruments: Prasentation and 145 1 Presentation
of Financial Statemanis - Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
~These amendments to 145 32 and 1AS 1 were issued in February 2008 and became effective
for financial years baginning on or after 1 January 2009, The revisions provide a limited scopea
excaption for puttable instruments to be classilled as equity if they Tulfill a number of spacified
features. The adoplion of these standards had no materlal impact on the financial position or
the parformance of the Company.
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HI“EE to Ehﬂ fiﬂﬂlll:iﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

- IFRS 2, Amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
(effective from 1 January 2009}, The Standard resfricts the definition of "vesting condition” to a
condition that includes an explicit or implicit requirement o provide services. Any other
conditions are non-vesting conditions, which have to be taken into account to determine the fair
value of the aquity instrumeants granted. In the case that the award doas not vest as the result of a
failure to meeal a non-vesting condition that s within the control of aither the entity or the
counterparty, this must be accounted for as a cancallation. This ameandment had no material
Impact on the financial position or perfermance of the Bank.

IFRIC 13, Customer Lovalty Programmes, which was issue in June 2007 and effective for
accounting periods beginning 1 July 2008, This interpretation requires customer lovalty credifs
to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales transaction in which they are granted.
A porion of the fair value of the consideration received is allecaled o award credils and
deferred. This is then recognized as revenue over the period that the award credits are
redeamed. IFRIC 12 had no material impact on the financial pesition or performance of the
Bank.

- |FRIC 15 Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate IFRIC 15 was isswed in July 2008 and
becomes effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009, The interpretation is
to be applied retrospectively, It clarifies when and how revenue and related expenses from the
sale of a real estate unit should be recagnised if an agreement between a developer and a buyer
is reached before the construction of the real estate is completed. Fudhermore, the
Interpretation provides guldance on how to determine whether an agreemant i within the scope
of 1AS 11 or I1AS 18 Thiz standard has no material effect on the Bank's financial statements.

- IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Met Investment in a Foreign Operation. IFRIC 16 was issued in July 2008
gnd becomes effeclive for financial years beginning on or after 1 October 2008, The
interpretation is to be applied prospectively, IFRIC 16 provides guidance on the accounting for a
hedge of a nat investment, As such it provides guidance on identifying the forekgn currency risks
that qualify for hadge accounting in the hedge of a net investmeant, whare within the group tha
hedging instruments can be hald in the hadge of a net invesiment and how an entity should
determineg the amount of foreign currency gain or lozs, relating to both the net investment and
the hedging instrument, to be recycled on disposal of the net investment. This standard has no
material impact on the Bank's financial statements.

Improvements to IFRSs

In May 2008 and April 2008, the IASB issued omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily
with a view 1o remaoving inconsistencies and clarifying warding. There are separata transitional
provisions for each standard. The adoption of the following amandments resultad in changes to
accounting policies bul did not have any impact on the financlal position or performanca of tha
Campany.

IFRS 5 Mon-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations: clarifies that the
disclosures required in respect of non-curment assets and disposal Company's classified as held
for sale or discontinued operafions are only those sef out in IFRS 5. The disclosure requireaments
of other IFRSs only apply if specifically required for such non-current assetls or discontinued

aparations.

= IFRS 8 Operating Segment Information: clarifies that sagment assels and labllities need only
be reporied when those assets and liabilities are included in measures that are used by the chief
operating decision maker. As the Bank's chief operating decision maker does review segment
assets and liabilities, the Bank has disclosed this information in Mote 29,
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HI“EE to thﬂ Iiﬂﬂnﬂiﬂi statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

- |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements: Assats and liabilities classified as held for
trading in accordance with 1AS 39 Financial Instrumeants: Recognition and Measuremant are
naot automatically classified as current in the statement of financial position, Tha Bank
analysad whether the axpected perod of realisation of financial assets and liabilities differad
from the classification of the instrumeant. This did not result in any reclassification of financial
instrumenis batwean current and non-current in the statement of financial position.

= A3 T Statement of Cash Flows: Explicitly stales thal only expenditure that results in
recognising an assel can be clazsified as a cash flow from investing activiies. This
amandment will impact the preseniation In the statement of cash flows of the contingant
consideration on the business combination completed in 2009 upon cash settlement.

- 145 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: Replaces the term "net selling price” with "fair value
less costs to sall”. This did not result in any change in tha financial position of the Bank.

- |A5 18 Revenue: The Board has added guidance (which accompanies the standard) o
determine whether an enlity iz acting as a principal or as an agent. The features o consider ara
whether the entity:

- Has primary responsibility for providing the goods or sarvice
- Has inventory risk

- Has discretion in establishing prices

- Bears the cradit risk

= 145 20 Accounting for Governmenl Granis and Disclosures of Govammaeant Assistanca:
Loans granted with no or low interest will not be exempt from the requirement to impute
interest. Interest is o be imputed on loans granted with below-market interest rates. This
amendment did not impact the Bank.

- |AS 23 Borrowing Costs: The definition of borrowing costs is revised to consolidate the two
twpes of items that are considered components of ‘borrowing costs’ Into one - the Intarast
axpense calculated using the effective interest rate method calculated in accordance with LAS
38. This amendment has no impact on the Bank.

- 1AS 36 Impairment of Assels: When dizcounted cash flows are used 1o estimate Tair value
less cost o sell' additional disclosure s required aboul the discount rale, consistent with
disclosures requlred when the discounted cash flows are used o estimate value in use’. This
amendment had no immediate impact on the financial statemenis of the Bank.

A5 38 Intangible Assels: Expenditure on adveriising and promotional acliviies is
recognised as an expense when the Bank either has the right to access the goods or has
received the service. This amendment has no impact on the Bank because it does not enter
inte such promotional activities.

= Other amendments resulting from Improvements o IFRSs to the following standards did not
hawve any impact on the accounting policies, financial positicn or perfformance of the Bank:
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IFRS 2 Share-based Payment
- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
- |1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Estimates and Error
- |AS 10 Events after the Reporting Period
- IAS 19 Employee Benefits
- |AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
- |1AS 28 Investments in Associates
- |AS 31 Interestin Joint Ventures
- |AS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
- |AS 38 Intangible Assels
- |1AS 40 Investment Properties
- IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
- IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 16 Hedge of a Net Investmentin a Foreign Operation

Amendments to published standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective 1
January 2009

- The Bank has chosen not to early adopt the following standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards that were issued, but not yet effective, for accounting
periods beginning on 1 January 2009. The Bank expects that adoption of these standards,
amendments and interpretations is expected not to have any significant impact on the Bank's
financial statements in the period of initial application but additional disclosures will be required.

- IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (Revised). The IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2 that
clarified the scope and the accounting for group cash-settled share-based payment
transactions and is effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.

- IFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations and IAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements (effective | July 2009)-The revised standards were issued in January
2008 and become effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009. IFRS 3R
introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business combinations occurring after
this date that will impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period
that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results. 1AS 27R requires that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounted for as an equity
transaction. Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill, nor will it give rise
to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses
incurmed by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. Other consequential
amendments were made to |1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, |AS 12 Income Taxes, |AS 21 The
Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, |AS 28 Investment in Associates and 1AS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures. The changes by IFRS 3R and |1AS 27R will affect future acquisitions
or loss of control and transactions with minority interests. The change in accounting policy had
no material impact on the eamings pershare,
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HI“EE tﬂ Ehﬂ ﬁﬂﬂnﬂiﬂi EtﬂtEME“ts for the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

- |AS 24 Related Parly Disclosure (Revised): The revised Standard was issued in Movember
2009 and shall be applied retrospectively for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January
2011, The objective of this Standard is 1o ensure that an entity's financial statements contain
the disciosures necassary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and profit
or koss may have been afected by the existence of related pariies and by transactions and
outstanding balances, including commitments, with such paries. This Standard shall be
applied in: identifying related party relafionships and transactions; idenfifying outstanding
balances, including commitments, between an entity and its related parties; identifying the
circumstances in which disclosure of the items in {a) and (b) is required; and determining the
disclosures to be made about those items. This Standard requires disciosure of related pary
relationships, tansactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, in the
consolidated and separate financial statements of a parent, veniurer or investor presented in
accordance with 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. This Standard also
applies o individual financial statements.

A5 39 Fimancial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Eligible Hedged Items -
These amendments to 1AS 39 were issued in August 2008 and become effective for financial
vears [beginning on or after 1 July 2009, The amendment addresses the designation of a one-
sided risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a hedged risk or portion in
particular situations. It clanfies that an entity is permitied to designate & portion of the fair value
changes or cash flow variability of a financial instrument as hedged item. As per management
assessment, the amendment has no impact on the financial position or performance of the
bank has the bank has not entered into such hedges.

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Dervatives and [AS 39 Financial Instruments;
Recognition and Measurement: This amendment to IFRIC 9 requires an entity to assess
whether an embedded derivative must be separated from a host coniract when the entity
recltassifies a hybrid financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category. This
assessment is (o be made based on circumstances that existed on the later of the date the
enfity first became a pariy to the contract and the date of any contract amendments that
significantly change the cash flows of the contract. 1AS 38 now states that if an embedded
derivative cannot be reliably measured, the entire hybrid instrument must remain classified as
atfair value through profit or loss.

- IFRIC 17-Distribution of Mon-Cash Assets to Owners-effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 July 2009-This interpretation provides guidance on accounting for arrangements
whereby an enfity distributes non-cash assets fo shareholders either as a distribution of
resenves or as dividends. This standard has no effect on the company's fimancial statements,

- IFRIC 18-Transfers of Assets from Cusiomers effective for periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009-This interpretation provides guidance on how to account for items of property, plant
and equipment received from customers, or cash that is received and used o acquire or
construct specific assets. This interpretation only applies to such assets that are used fo
connect the customer to a network or to provige ongoing access to a supply of goods or
services or both, This standard has no effect on the company’s financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements o the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

2. Financial risk management

Introduction and overview

The bank's activities expose it to a varety of financial risks and those activities involve the
analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of
risks. Taking risk is cora to the bank's business, and the operational risks are an inevitable
consequance of being in businass. The bank's aim is tharefore lo achieve an appropriate
balance betwean risk and retum and minimize potential adverse effects on its financial
perfarmance. Tha mostimpartant types of risk include:

» Credifrisk

» Liguidity risk

*  Marke! risk- includes currency, interest rate and other price risk

* Dperational risk

Risk management framework

The Board of Direclors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Bank's risk management framework. The board has established a Board Audit and Risk
Committees and a risk department to assist in the discharge of this responsibility. The board
has also established the Credit Commitlea which is responsible for developing and monitoring
risk management in their respective areas.

The bank's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the bank, fo set appropriate risk limits and contrels, and o monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewad regulary to reflact changes in
market conditions, products and services offerad. The bank, through its training and
managemeant standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control enviranment, in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The bank's Audit and Risk Management Committees are responsible for monitoring
compliance with the bank's risk managemant policies and procedures, and for reviewing the
adeqguacy of the risk management framawork in relation 1o the risks faced by the bank. The
Audit and Risk Management Commitiees are assisted in thesa functions by Intermal Audit and
the risk management departmeants. Intermal Audit underakas both reguiar and ad-hoc reviews
of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reparted to theSub
Board Audit Committes.

i) Creditrisk
Cradit risk is the risk of financial loss 1o the bank if a customer or counterparty to a financial

Instrumant fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the bank's loans
and advances 1o custorners and other banks and investment securities.
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2. Financial risk management - {Continued)

For risk managameanl raporling purposas, the bank considers and consolidates all elameants of
credii risk exposure,

Management of credit risk

The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk o its
Credit-Committee and Sub-Board Risk Management Commitlee, A separate Cradit
department, reperting to the Executive Committee, is responsible for oversight of the bank's
creditrisk, including:

. Formulating credit policies in consultation with business units, covering collateral
requiremants, credit assessment, risk grading and reporting, documentary and legal
proceduras, and compliance with regulatory and statutory requiraments.

. Establishing the authorsation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities
Authorsation limits are allocated to business units. Larger facilities require approval by
the Executive Committee members and the Board (Sub Committee) on risk
manageameant.

* Reviewing and assessing credil risk. The Credit depariments assess all credit
EXposures in excess of designated limits, prior to facilities being committed to customers
by the business unit concemed. Renewals and reviews of facilities are subject 1o the
game review process. Limiting concentrations of exposure (o counterpariies,
gaographies and industries (for loans and advances), and by Issuer, credil raling band,
marka! liquidity and country (for investmeanl securities).

Developing and maintaining the bank’s risk grading in order {0 categorise exposures
according io the degree of rizk of financial loss faced and (o focus management on the
attendant risks. The rizk grading zystem iz used in determining whare impairment
provisions may be required against spacific cradil exposures. The current sk grading
framework consists of 4 grades reflacting varying degreas of rsk of default and the
availability of collateral or other cradit risk mitigation. The responsibility for satting risk
grades lies with the Board of Directors. Risk grades are subject to regular reviews by the
Rizk Management Depariment.

' Reviewing compliance of business units with agread exposura limits, including thosea for
salacted industrias, country risk and product types. Regular reports are providad to the
credit depariment on the credit guality of portfolios and appropriate corective action is
taken.

' Providing advice, guidance and spacialist skills to businesz units o promote best
praclice throughout the bank in the managament of credit sk,
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NDIEE tﬂ' lhE ﬁﬂﬁllﬂiﬂ' Siiltﬂﬂll‘..llls for the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

2. Risk management

The Bank has a risk management deparimen! organised into credil control, recovenes and
operational contrel. Under the credit control department, it has credit administration, credit risk
appraisal and credit monitoring, The department is responsible for managing all nsks towhich
the Bank is exposed (operational nisk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign
currency rizk.) The rizk management depariment is developing a risk management framework
for the Bank.

The Bank treats all branches as independent business units which generate their own income,
run their own profit and loss account and statement of financial position. The head office
consolidates these and exercises oversight responsibility over all the branches. Credit is
generated at the branch level and is then channelled through the credit control unit of the risk
management department whera a credit risk appraisal is performed to assess whather to
engage tha client or nol. The client's file is then moved to the head of risk management and to
the other appropriate levels (credit committees, board and so on) for final approval before credit
is granted. There is also the manitoring aspect where the head office credit monitoring team
meanitors the loans and their performance in addition to the monitoring performed at the branch
level. Where a loan goes bayond current, it is clazsified as either olem, substandard, doubtful
and lozs, as recommeandead by the Central Bank of Ghana. Where a loan goes bayond cumant,
thara ks the recovenes taam which moves In 1o recover loan lessas, From 2009, the Bank is
implementing a different loan classification/structure which is more stringent than those
recommended by Ceniral Bank of Ghana. There will be mo classification based on cument,
olem, substandard, doubiful or loss excepifor Central Bank of Ghana reporiing.
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Hﬂtﬂ'ﬁ to Ihﬂ ““ﬂn'ﬂiﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

2

Accounting policies {continued)

On- statement of financial position items
a) Government sacurities
b) Deposils Duee From financial Institutions

= Local
= Foreign

) Loans and advances o customers:
Loans to indlviduals:
= Owerdrafts
= Term loans

Loans to corporate entities:
= Dwverdrafts
= Term loans

Gross loans and advances{including suspended
interast)

c)  Other assets
= Inter Bank Clearing ltems
=  Other

Off- statement of financial position itoms
Letiers of credit
Guarantees & indemnities
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2009 2008

GH¢ GH¢
125,593 869 87,323,906
33,730 468 11,382 805
15,221 883 10,6584 499
48 952 351 22,077,304
46.591.761 49,053,836
63.061.268 70,580,958
109,653,029 119,614,794
136.631 803 124 112,803
190,831 436 172,999,896
327 463 245 297 112,699
437,116 274 416,727 493
14,546 257 16,086,546
58,586,778 56,502,925
74.133.035 T2,599.471
FENEEEEEEE @ °EETFETEEEEE
8,858,819 27,685,392
126.331.058 86,810,518
135,189 878 114,495,910
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Notes to the financial statements o the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

2 Financial risk management (continued)
i) Creditrisk (continued)
The bank doas not perceive any significant cradit risk on the following financial assats:

. Investments in Government secunties and Central Bank of Ghana.
. T staterment of financial position items

Classification of loans and advances

The table below represents the maximum credit risk exposure to the bank at 31 December
2008, and after taking into account credit enhancemenis.

2009

Loans and advances to customers

Gross Impairment
amounts

GHe b
MNeither past due norimpaired 324440377 Q8%
Fastdue but notimpaired 6,502,229 2%
330,942 606 100%

S . S B e i e L
s e e e ¢ e e e e e e e

Each business unit is required to implement bank credit policies and procedures, with
credit approval authornities delegated from the banks Risk Management Department.
Each business unit has a Credit Risk officer who reports on all credit related matters to Risk
Management Departmant.

Impaired loans
Impaired loans and sacunties are loans and securibes for which the bank determines that it

iz probable that it will be unable to collect all principal and interest due according to the
coniractual terms of the loan / securibes agreament(s).
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HI“EE to thﬂ Iiﬂﬂnﬂiﬂi statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

2,  Financial risk management (continued)
i) Credit risk (continued)
Past due but notimpaired loans

Loans and advances where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but the
bank beleves that impairment is not approprate on the basis of the level of security/
collateral available and  or the stage of collection of amounts owed to the bank.

Loans with renegotiated terms

Loans with renagotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due 1o deterioration in
the borrower's financial position and where the bank has made concessions that it would
not otherwise consider, Once the loan is restructured it remains in this category
independent of satisfactory performance after restructuring.

Allowances forimpairment

The bank establishes an allowance for impairment losses thal represenis its estimate of
incurred losses in its loan portfolio. The main components of this allowance are a specific
loss companent that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loan loss
allowance established for banks of homogeneous assets in respect of losses that have
been incurred but have nol been identified on loans subject to individual assessment for
impairment.

Write-off policy

The bank writes off a loan / security balance (and any related allowances for impairmeant
losses) when the Credit depariment determines that the loans are uncollectible. This
determination is reached after considering information such as the occurrence of
significant changes in the bomower's financial position such that the bormrower can no
longer pay the obligation, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back
the entire exposure. For smaller balance standardised loans, charge off decisions
generally are based on a product specific past due status.

Collateral held

The bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers in the form of cash,
mortgage interests over property, other registered securities over assets, and guarantees,
Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of
borrowing, and genearally are nol updated except when a loan is individually assessad as
impairad. Collateral generally is not held over Interbank placements, except when
securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity.
Collateral usually is not held against investment securities, and no such collateral was held
at 31 December 2009,
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Notes to the financial statements ror the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

2.  Financial risk management {continued)

Collateral hald [Continued}

An estimate of the fair value of collateral and other security enhancemeanis held against

financial assets is shown below:
Loans and advances (o customers
Against individually impaired
Property

Against neither past due nor impained

Proparty

Tatal

Concentrations of risk

2009 2008
GHe GHe

146.306,744 4 BE6 154

312,985,301 420,313 987

458292 045 425,200,141

The bank monitors concanirations of credit risk by sector. An analysiz of concentrations of

credit risk at the reporting date s shown below:

(a) Advances o cuslomers- gross

2009 2008
GH¢ Ya GHe¢ %
Agriculture 105,304 582 24.09% 101,374 375 24 33%
Manufacturing 80,077,713 11.46% 53954 218 12.95%
Commearce & Finance 48 287 276 11.05% 50,168,763 12.04%
Transport & communications 13,507,058 3.09% 1,786,783 0.43%
Mining and quarrying 8,359 0BG 2.14% 4 122 M2 0.99%
Bullding & construction 42 314,151 9.68% 36,388 454 8.73%
Services 143192 212 32.76% 149512 360 35.88%
Others 25,064,156 5.73% 19,419 828 4.66%
437 116,273 100% 100%

[ =3 ) 5= a-j-ui
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HI“EE to thﬂ Iiﬂﬂnﬂiﬂi statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

(b)

il.

Off statement of financial position items (letters of credit and guarantess)

2009 2008
GH¢ %% GHe¢ %o
Social comm. &
personal serv. 27 BBE 8&7 20.48% 25,676,870 22.43%
Business services 66,567 496 49.24% 54 931 400 47 98%
Transport & communication 22 278 292 16.48% 16,602 864 14.50%
Other 17.899.140 13.24% 16,165,316 14.12%
Manufacturing 787,063 0.56% 1,119,460 0.98%
135,189,878 100% 114,455,910 100.00%

Seltlemeant risk

The bank's aclivities may give rise to rizk at the time of settlement of fransactions and trades.
Seltlement risk is the rigk of loss due to the failure of a company o honowr itz obligations to
deliver cash, securities orother assels as contraciually agreed.

For certain iypes of tranzactions the bank mitigates this risk by conducting settements through
a settlement ! clearing agent o ensure thal a trade is seltled only when both parties have
fulfilled their confractual selflement obligations. Settlement limils form part of the credit
approval / limit monitoring process described earlier. Acceplance of seltlement risk on free
sottlement rades raquires transaction specific or counterparty specific approvals from the
bank's risk function.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk |z the risk that the bank will encounter difficulty in meeting cbligations from iis
financial liabilities-

Management of liguidity risk

The bank's approach o managing liguidity i o ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient lguidity o meet s liabiliies when due, under both normal and siressed
condifions, without incurrng unacceptable lozses or risking damage to the bank’s repuiation.

The treasury department maintains a portfolio of short-term liguid assets, largely made up of
short-term liquid investment securities, loans and advances 1o banks and other inter-bank
facilities, to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within the bank as awhaole,

Exposure to liquidity risk

The key measure used by the bank for managing liquidity rizk is the rafio of net liquid assets to
deposits from cusfomers. For this purpose net liquid assets are considered as incleding cash
and cash equivalents and investment grade debt securiies for which there is an active and
liquid market less any deposits from banks, debt securities issued, other bommowings and
commitmeants maturing within the next month.
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HI“EE to thﬂ fiﬂﬂlll:iﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

Residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the bank under non-denvative financial
lighilities by the remaining cenfractual maturifies at the dale of the siatement of financial
position, The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cashilows,
whereas the bank manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected undiscounied inflows,

The bank's cashflow however vary significantly from this analysis, For example, cusiomer
deposits are maintained for longer periods than the contractual maturity dates hence the
deposit base is considered to be of a stable and long term nature,

The previous fable shows the undiscounted cash flows on the bank's financial liabilities and
unrecognised koan commitments on the basis of their eariest possible contractual maturity.
The bank's expected cash flows on these instruments vary significantly from this analysis. For
example, demand deposits from customers are expected to maintain a stable or increasing
halance; and wnrecognised kan commitments are not all expected to be drawn down
immediately. The gross nominal inflow / (ouiflow) disclosed in the previous table is the
contraciual, undiscounted cash flow on the financial iability or commitment

Market risks

Markeirisk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, foreign
exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating fo changes in the obligor's f issuer's credit
standing} will affect the bank's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable paramefers, while opiimising the return on nisk,

Management of market risks

Owerall responsibility for management of market risk rests with Asset and Liability Management
Committee (ALCOY), The risk department is responsible for the development of detailed market
risk management policies (subject to review and approval by ALCO) and for the day to day
implementation of those policies.

a) Interest rate risk

The bank is exposad to the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due fo
changes in market interest rates. The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability fo
replace at an acceptable cost, interast-bearing liabilities as they mature, are impartant factors
in assessing the bank's exposure to changas ininterest rates and guidity.

Interest rates on advances to customers and other risk assets are pegged to the bank's base
lending rate. The basa rate is adjusted from time to time to reflect the cost of funds.

The Assets and Liability Managemant Committee closely monitors the interest rate trends fo
minimize the potential adverse impact of interest rate changes,
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Annual Report & Fieancinl Sletements -

Notes to the financial statements o the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

2. Financial risk management (continued)
a) Interest rate risk (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rales of assals and
lEabiliies is fundameantal to the management of the bank.

The interest rate rizsks sensiivity analysis is based on the following assumplions.

. Changes in the market interesl rates affect the interest income or expenses of variable
imterast financial Instrumeants

. Changes in marke! interest rates only affect interest income or expensas in relaticn to
financial iInstrumeants with fixed interest rates if these are recognized al thelr fair value.

. Tha interest rale changes will have a significant effect on interest sensitive asseais and
Ifabilities and henca simulation modeling is applied to net Interest margins.

. Tha interast rates of all maturities move by the same amount and, therefore, do not
reflect the potential impact on net interast income of some rates changing while others
ramain unchanged.

. The projactions make other assumptions including that all positions run 1o maturity.

Interest rate risk and foreign currency risk

The Bank usaes the Reulers system lo monitor live interest and exchange rates to facilitate
trading by tha treasury deparimant. This helps the Bank to know what is happening at any
mamant in tme on the markets and where opporiunities are presaent to make gains from high
interest rates. The bank has also instiiuted a Basel || compliance committee which s
scheduled 1o meal throughout the vear to review various risks that the Bank faces and how 1o
move cosaly to Bazel I The bank does nol embark on hedging of its interest rate risk and
foraign currency risk.

b. Foreignexchange risk

The bank operates wholly within Ghana and its assets and liabilites are carred in local
currency. The bank maintains trade with correspondent banks and takes deposits and lends in
foreign currencies. The bank is exposed 1o the risk that the value of financial instruments will
fluctuate due o changes in foreign exchange rates. The bank’s cumency position and
exposure are managed within the exposure guideline of 30%: of the core capital as stipulated
by the Central Bank of Ghana. This position is reviewed on a daily basis by management.

The exchange rates used for ransiating the major foreign cumrency balances at the year
end were as follows:

2009 2008
GHg GHeg
LIS Dwollar 1.4340 1.2137
GB Pound 2.3116 1.7589
EURD 2.0687 1.7103
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HI“EE to thﬂ fiﬂﬂlll:iﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

2. Financial risk management (continued)
a) Interestrate risk (Continued)

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and
liabilities is fundamental io the management of the bank.

The interest rate risks sensitivity analysis is based on the following assumplions.

. Changes in the market interest rates affect the interest income or expenses of
vanable interest financial instruments

. Changes in market interest rates only affect intarest income or expenses in relation
to financial instruments with fixed interest rates if these are recognized at their fair
value.

. Tha interest rate changes will have a significant effect on interast sensitive assels
and liabilities and hence simulation modeling is applied o net interest margins.

. The interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount and, therefore, do not
reflect the potential impact on net interest income of some rates changing while
others remain unchanged

* The projections make other assumptions including that all positions run to maturity.

Interest rate risk and foreign currency risk

The Bank uses the Reuters system to monitor live interest and exchange rates to facilitate
trading by tha treasury department. This halps the Bank to know what is happaning at any
mament in time on the markets and where opportunities are present to make gains from
high interest rates. The bank has also instituted a Baseal |l compliance committee which is
scheduled to meet throughout the year to review various risks that the Bank faces and how
to move closely to Basel ||, The bank doas nol embark on hedging of its interast rate risk
and foreign currency risk.

b. Foreign exchange risk

The bank operates wholly within Ghana and ils assels and liabilities are carried in local
currency. The bank maintains trade with correspondent banks and takes deposits and
lends in forgign currencies, The bank is exposed to the risk that the value of financial
instrumeants will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The bank's currency
position and exposure are managed within the exposure guideline of 30% of the core
capital as stipulated by the Central Bank of Ghana. This position is reviewed on a daily
basis by management.

The exchange rates used for translating the major foreign currency balances at the year
and were as follows:

2008 2007
GHe GHe
LS Dollar 1.2137 0.9508
GBE Pound 1.7584 1.9177F
EURQ 1.7103 1.4145
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HI“EE to thﬂ fiﬂﬂlll:iﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

2. Financial risk management (Continued)
b} Foreignexchangerisk ( continued)

Foreign exchange risk - Appreciation/depreciation of GH¢ against other currencies by apprax.
10%

The Foreign exchange risks sensitivity analysis is based on the following assumptions:

. Foreign exchange exposures represent net currency positions of all currencies other
than Ghana Cedis

. The currency risk sensitivity analysis is based on the assumption that all net currency
positions are highly effective.

. The base currency in which the bank’s business is transacted iz Ghana Cedis.

iv) Operationalrisks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causas
associated with the bank's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from
aexternal factors other than credit, market and lguldity risks such as those ansing from legal
and regulatory requiremenis and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
Operational risks anse from all of the bank’s operations and are faced by all business entities.

This is a major risk to the Bank because it has the potential of running the whole bank down if
not managed, Operational risks relate to the risk that the Bank's operations may ba halted
temparanly or permanently by inadequate internal and/or systems controls, allowing for
people to take advantage to commit fraud. The bank has invested more into managing this
risk and saving the assets of the company.

The bank's objective is o manage oparational risk so as o balance the avoidance of financial
losses and damage io the bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control
procedures that restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implamentation of controls to address
operational risk is assigned to senior management within each business unit. This
responsibility is supported by the development of overall bank standards for the management
of operational risk in the following areas:

- requirements for approprate segregation of duties, including the independent
authorization of fransacfions

requiremenis for the reconciliation and monitoring of ransactions

compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements

documentation of controls and proceduras

requiremenis for the perodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy
of controls and procedures to address the risks identified

requirements for the reporiing of operational losses and proposed remedial action
developmeant of confingency plans

training and professional developrment

ethical and business standards

risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective,

L] i L ] L] [

Compliance with the bank's standards is supporied by a programmea of periodic reviews
undertaken by Internal Audit. The reports of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the
management of the business unit to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Board
Sub-Audit Committes.
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HI“EE to thﬂ Iiﬂﬂnﬂiﬂi statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

3. Capital Management
Regulalory capital

The Central Bank of Ghana sets and monilors capital reguirements for the bank.
The bank's objectives whan managing capital are:

L To safeguard the bank’s ability to conlinue as a going concern 5o that it can continue o
provide retums for the shareholders and benefits for the other stakeholders.

. To maintain a strong capital base to support the current and fulure development needs of
th businass.

L To comply with the capital requiremenis zet by the Central Bank of Ghana.

Capital adequacy and usa of regulalory capital are monitored by management amploying
lechniques based on the guidelines developad by the Central Bank of Ghana for suparvisory
purposes. Tha required information iz filed with the Cantral Bank of Ghana on a monthly basis.

The Central Bank of Ghana requires each bank fo:
aj Hold the minimum level of regulatory capital of GHEED Million by the and of 2010,

b Maintain a ratio of total regulatory capital; to rizk weighted assets plus risk weaighted off
balance assats at above the raquired minimum of 10%;

The bank’s regulatory capital is analysed into two tiers:

. Tier 1 capital, which includes ordinary share capltal, share premium, retained eamings,
after deductions for intangible assels (excluding computer software), investments in
equity instrumenis of otherinstitutions and other regulatory adjustments relating toitems
that are included in equity but are treated differently for capital adequacy purposes.,

' Tier 2 capital, which includes Capitalised Revaluations Reserves; Latent Revaluation
Reserves; Undisclosed Reserves; Revaluation Reserves; Sub-Ordinated Loans and
Hybrid Capital subject to a limit of 100% of Tier 1 Capital

The bank's policy is to mainiain a strong capital base s0 as 1o maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and o sustain future development of the business. The impaciofthe level of
capital on shareholders’ return is also recognised and the bank recognises the need to maintain
a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the
advaniages and security afforded by a sound capital position.
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da.

Capital management {continued)
Capltal allocation

The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, 1o a large extent, driven
by optimisation of the return achieved on the capital allocated. Tha amaunt of capital allocated
to each operation or activity is based primarily upon the regulatory capital, but in some cases
the regulatory requirements do not reflect fully the varying degree of risk associated with
diffarant activities. In such cases the capital requiremeants may ba flaxed to reflect differing risk
profiles, subject to the overall level of capital to support a particular operation or activity not
falling below the minimum required for regulatory purposas, The process of allocating capital to
specific operations and activities is undartaken indepandently of thosa responsible far the
operation, by Bank Risk and Bank Credit, and is subject to review by tha Bank Credil
Commiltes and or ALCO as appropriate.

Although maximization of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis used in
determining how capital is allocated within the bank to parficular operations or activities, itis not
the sole basis used for decision making. Account also is faken of synergies with other
operations and activities, the availability of management and other resources, and the fit of the
activity with the bank's longer term sirategic objectives. The bank’s policies in respect of capital
management and allocation are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

Critical accounting estimates and judegments in applying the bank's accounting
policies

In the process of applying the bank’s accounting policies, management has made esiimates
and assumptions that affect the repored amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other faciors, including expectations of fulure evenis that are
believed 1o be reasonable under the circumsiances. Revisions o accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Thase are dealt with below:

b. Impairment losses on loans and advances

The bank reviews its loan porifolios to assess impairment regularly. In determining whether an
impairment loss showld be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income, the bank
makes judgements a5 to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated fuiure cashflows from a porfolio of loans, before &
decrease can be ideniified with an indiwvidual loan in that portfolio, This evidence may incluede
ohservable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the payment status of
borrowers in a bank, or national or local economic condifions that correlate with defaults on
assets in the bank.

G Impairment losses on loans and advances
Management uses estimates based on historical loss expenence for asseis with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar o those in the portfolio when
scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and Sming of future cash flows are reviewed regulary fo reduce any differences
between loss estimates and actual loss experience.
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d. Held -to-maturity investments

The bank follows the guidance of 1AS 39 on classifying non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity. This classification
raquires significant judgement. In making this judgement, the bank evaluatas its intention and
ahility to hold such investments to maturity. If the bank fails to keep thesa investmeants o
maturity ather than for the specific circumstances - for example, selling an insignificant amaunt
close to maturity - it will ba required 1o reclassify the entire class as available-for-sale. The
invastments would therefore be measured at fair value not amortised cast,

e. Property and equipment

Critical estimates are madea by the directors in datermining depreciation rates for property and
equipment,

5 Going concern

As at 31 Decamber 2009, the bank had an accumulated revenue surplus of GHe¢E, 949 811
(2008 - Surplus of GHg13 852 384),

The diractors are confident of continuad Profitable pedfarmanca in the coming years in view of
the continuad stability of the Ghanaian economy in the face of daunting challenges arousad by
the current global financial crisas. The Directors have putl in place measures o ensure
consistent good parformance and avoid risks that may impair the Quality of the Banks credit
portfolio.

In view of the above, the directors consider it appropriate to prapare these financial statemeants
&n a going concern basis.
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Interast incomea

Loans and advances

Government securities - (Held 1o Maturity Invesimanis)

Cash and shorl term funds

Interast expense
(a} On deposits:

Fixed Mime deposiis
savings Deposits
Demand & Call deposits

ib) On borrowed funds:
Inter-Bank Bomowing
Long-Term Bormowings

Fees and commission
(a) Income

Commission on Tumover
Feez and Charmges
Foreign Trade Income

Sale of Cheque Book Charges

Loan Fee Incomes

Guarantees Charges & Commission

Gains on foreign exchange dealings

Annual Report & Fieancinl Sletements -

Notes to the financial statements ror the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

2009 2008
GH¢ GH¢
63,550,062 49 060,634
15,793,753 9,547 042
2,072,123 1,081,224
81.415,038 59,688,900
AR EEEEE EEENEEEEE
2009 2008

GH¢ GH¢
19,634,560 8,041,769
5,704,668 3,077 635
9,394, 784 5,067 660
34,734,021 16,187,064
522,337 269,815
4,346,797 4,017 982
4,869,134 4,287 797
39,603,155 20,474,861
T EEEEE | = =f-m=g= |=p-w-q
2009 2008

GH¢ GH¢
5,000,373 4,281 362
9,440,286 8,645 827
8,536,662 7,121,094
613,167 634,632
4,260,514 4,927,198
686,191 455,179
28.627,193 26,065,292
EEEEEEEEE EEEEEEEEE

Zains on forekgn currency dealings arose from dealings in foreign cumency transactions and
also on the translation of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
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Hﬂtﬂ'ﬁ to thﬂ ““ﬂn'ﬂiﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

10.

1.

12.

Other operating incoma

Bad debis recoverad
Dividends from investments
Agric Input Income

Interest on staff loans

Operating expenses

Staff costs (Mote 12)

Directors’ fees

Depreciation

Ocoupancy Cost

Auditors Remuneration

Donations and Social Responsibility
Motor Vehicle Running Expenses
General & Adminisirative Expenses
Others

Staff costs

Salaries and wages

Penzion costs - (Defined contribution scheme (o SSNIT)
Staff Provident Fund [ Defined Confribution Scheme)
Staff Bonuses

Value of Staff Outstanding Leave at 31, 12, 2009
Income loss - Staff Loans at Concessionary Rates
Other staff related costs

Paoc 5%

2009
GHe¢

4,167 972
896,034
25,274
1,459,144

39,790,772
85,780
3,927 429
9,231,617
70,000
492 140
1,007,723
7,238,672
13.712

61,947 745

——
NN EENEEE

2009
GHe

25,045,705
2,228,396
2,673,066
2218170

1,450 144
6,166,291

= =

2008
GHe¢

6,972,557
605,829
80,796
2,493,803

10,152,985

2008
GH¢

38,504,673
35,080
3,155,482
8,083,026
59,000
361,044
1,269,905
5,792,880
31,024

57292114

21,207 457
1,783,299
2,139,630
2,000,996
1,560,974
2,242 4786
7,569,843
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Notes to the financial statements ror the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

13.

14,

Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable fo
shareholders by the number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2008

GHg
Earnings {GHg) 12,667 366
Earnings aftributable fo ordinary shareholders 12,667,366
Mumber of shares
Mumber of ordinary shares 25,000,000
Earnings per share 0.507
Basic (GH¢) 0507

2008
GHg

14,934,890

14,934 890

=== ======

S o R

S o R

There were no potentially dilutive instruments outstanding at the date of the statement of

financial position.

Cash and balances with Central Bank of Ghana 2009
GHe

Cash on hand 23 858 241
Balances with Central Bank of Ghana 52,032,702
75,890 943

Faoc &G0

2008
GHe

14,539 223
27,347 929

41 887,152
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Hﬂtﬂ'ﬁ to thﬂ ““ﬂn'ﬂiﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

15. Government securities 2009 2008
Available for Sale Investments: GHe GHe
91-Day Treasury Bil 0,500,000 11,000,000
Treasury Notes 4 10,439,273
162-Day Treasury Bil 38,500,000 13,263,723
2-5 Yaar Fixad Rate Note 23,382,377 44 071,304
Foreign Bills 3,211 492 8,549 606

125,593 BE9 87,323 908

Maturing within 90 days of the date of acquisition 60,500,000 43,252 602
60,500,000 43,252,602

Maturity between 1 - 3 years of the date of acquisition 65,093,869 a4 071,304
65,093,869 a4 071,304

125,593 8G9 87,323,906

The waighted average effective interest rale on treasury bills at 31 December 2008 was
22 93% (2008 - 24 66% ) and the rate for treasury bonds at 31 December 2009 was 22 .93%

16. Deposits and balances due 2009 2008
from banking institulions GHg GHe¢
Ikems in course of collection 10,730 468 12,916,055
Mosiro account balances 15,221 883 9,161,249
Placement with othar banks 23,000,000 -

48,952 351 22077 304

The effective interest rate on deposits due from banking institutions at 31 December 2009
was 4% (2008 - 5.11%). The deposils mature within 80 days of the date of the statement of
financial position.
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Notes to the financial statements ror the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

20049 2008

17,  Invesiments GHeg GHe

Other Investments 7257 819 6,171,070

7,257,819 6,171,070

At 1 January, 2009 6,171,070 6,171,070

Additional Investments 1,086,749 -

At 31 Dacember, 2009 7257 819 6,171,070

18. Leoans and advances lo customers 20049 2008

GHe GHe¢

{a) Owverdrafts 139,637,107 164,112,803

Loans 297 479 166 252 614,690

Gross loans and advances 437 116,273 416,727 493
Provision for impaired loans and advances:

-Indlvidually assessed {64,251, 317) (46,120 835)

372 BE4 956 370,606,658

Included in net advances of GHE3T2 864 956.00 are loans and advances of
GHE209,605,161.00 which have been classified as non-performing (impalred).

Included in keans and advances to customers are staff loans amounting to GHg14 607 481
(2008 - GH¢13,593,310).

The effective interest rate on loans and advances at 31 December 2009 was 28 5%

(2008 - 25%).
2009 2008

(b} GHe GH¢
By maturity
Maturing:
Within one vear 315,551,331 330,333,627
One to Three years 57 313,625 40,273 031

372 BE4 956 A70,606 658
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009 {cont'd)

18. Loans and advances to customers 2009 2008
(e} Prowision for loans and advances GHg GHe

At 1 January 46,120,835 36,270,677
Additional Provisions during the year 18,130 482 9,850,158

At 31 December 64,251,317 46,120,835

18. Bad and Doubtful Debis Expense 2009 2008
id) GHe GHe
Loans & Advancas 15,696,800 6,344 820
Provisions far Guarantess & Indemnities 199 710 578,328
15,896 510 6,923 146

19. Other assets 2009 2008
GHe GHe

Advance payment 3,184 464 2,383,715
Prepayments 4,872 689 2,558 670
Stationary Stocks B36,752 356,973
Sundry receivables 21,044 643 26 BEE, 494
Others 43 906 877 40,435,619
73,745 535 72 599 471

FPaoc B3
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Hﬂtﬂ'ﬁ to Ihﬂ ““ﬂn'ﬂiﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

21.

21

Customer deposilts

Savings Deposits
Demand and Call Deposits
FixedTime Deposits

Customer deposits
Maturity analysis of customer deposits

(a) From Government and parasiatals:

Payable within S0 days
Payable after 30 days and within one year

(b} From Private Sector and individuals:
Payable within 50 days
Payable after 30 days and within one year

At 31 December

Panc &6

2009 2008

GHg GHe
85,439,480 69 576 667
234,297 988 182 645 803
105,407,347 BT 277 460
425,144,815 319 499 930
L0059 2008

GHe¢ GHg¢
8.778.251 12,564,130
147,745,493 105,816,298
157,523,744 118,380,428
147222717 110,639,119
120,398,354 O 480 383
267,621,071 201,119,502
425,144 815 319,499 930

= .
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Hﬂtﬂ'ﬁ to Ihﬂ ““ﬂn'ﬂiﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

22 Borrowed funds 2009 2008
GH¢ GHe
Loans:
Citibank 50,741,529 65,336,922
Central Bank of Ghana 732,705 763,193
Government of Ghana 36,726,913 33,272,048
Cwvearnight Borrowing - 9,000,000
88,201,147 108,372,163
23, Interest payable & other liabilities 2008 2008
GHg GHg
Interest Payable 3915224 2,164 214
Payables 46 982,749 50,122,135
Accruals 11,335,273 9,647,748
Other liabiliies 33,530,933 21,325,055
Staff Leave Provision 1,837 894 2,458,009
Dividend payable 2,000,000 2,000,000
99,602,073 BT, 717,161
24 Stated Capital
{a) The number of authorised shares s 100,000,000 shares.
ib) Stated Capital is made up as follows:
2009 2008
Mo. of Shares Proceeds Mo.of Shares Proceeds
GHg GHe¢
lssuad for Cash 800, 352 450 200 900,352 450,200
Far Considaration other
than cash 638,772 319,400 638,772 319,400
Transfer from Income
Surplus 23 460,876 489,230,400 23 460 876 49,230,400
50,000,000 25 000,000 50,000,000

25,000,000

Pac &7
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Notes to the financial statements ror the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

25 Motes to the cash flow statemeant

{a)

(b}

Reconciliation of profit before taxation to
cash generated from operations

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Change in provision

(Gain)Yoss on disposal of property and equipment
Exchange difference on foreign investment

Profit before working capital changes

(Increase) /decrease in kboans & advances
(Increasa)/decrease in other assals
Incraase/(decraasa) in customer daposits
Increase/(decreasa) in interest payable &
other liabilities

Cash genarated from operations

Analysis of the balances of cash

and cash equivalents

Cash & balances with Bank of Ghana
Government securities

Deposits and balances dua from
banking institutions

2009
GHeg

13,334,069

3,027,429
18,130,482

(73.080)
(3,925 577)

31,352 423

(20.388,780)
(758 564)
105,644,885

10,613,230

75,800,943
125 593 869

48,952,351

2008
GH¢

14,634 890

3,155,482
2,916,920
(65,541)

20,941,821
(151.473.724)

(17,050,831)
48,475,260

16,110,639

A e

41,B87 152
87,323,906

22,077 304

For the purposes of the statement statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include

short term liquid investments with maturities less than three months.
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Hﬂtﬂ'ﬁ to Ihﬂ ““ﬂn'ﬂiﬂl statements ror the year ended 31 December 2009 (cont'd)

26. Contingencies and commitments including off statement of financial position items

Contingent liabilities

In commaon with ather banks, the bank conducts business invalving acceptanceas,
guarantees, parformances and indemnities. The majority of these facilities are offset by

correspanding obligations of third parties.

20039 2008

(&) GHe GHe¢
Letters of credit 8,858,819 27,685,392
Guaraniees and Indemnities 126,331,058 86 810,518
135,189 877 114,495 910

Letters of credit commit the bank to make payments to third parties, on production of

documents, which are subsequently reimbursed by customers.

Concentrations of contingent liabilities are covered under note 2.

27. Management compensation
The remuneration of directors and other members of key managament
during the year were as follows:
20039 2008
GHg GH¢
Salaries 1,406,988 1,283,429
Allowances 526 B57 354,173
1,933 845 1,637 602
Management staff conslitutes stafl with grades Senior Manager and above.
Directors’ remuneration
Fees for services as direclors 85, Fa0 35,080
28. Retirement benefit obligations
Contributions to the statulory defined contribution
pension schamea, the National Social Security Fund 2228 396 1,783,299
Prowident Fund 2,673,066 2,135,430
4 901 462 3918 729

Paoc B9
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Notes to the financial statements ror the year ended 31 December 2008 (cont'd)

29

30

i

a2

33

Segmental reporting

A segment is a distinguishable componant of the group that is engaged aithar In providing
products or services (business sagmeant), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environmeant (gecgraphical segment}, which s subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.

The Bank currently uses single segmantal reporting lo managameant

Assets pledged as security

Az at 31 December 2009, thera were no assels pledged o secure labilities.

Falr values

The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different from thedr fair
vales.

Incorporation

The bank iz Incorporated in Ghana under the Banking Act, Act 673 and the Agricultural
Devalopment Bank Act 1965 Act 2B6.

Currency

These financial statements are prasented in Ghana Cedis(GHg)

Paoc TO
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Offices in Ghana

Head Office

AT Independenca Avenua

P . Box 4191, Accra

Ted: (D30) 2770403, 2TE2104, 2783122, 2TR4304
Fax (030) 2784893, 2770411

E-maf: adbweb@agrichank. cam

Website: www agrichank com

Zonal Offices

Ratall Parformance Monltoring -
Southern Zone

P. O, Box DS2270
Tel: 030 — 2302035, 2302036, 2302037

Fao: 030 - 2312039

Ratail Performance Monitoring -
Narthern Zone

P. O Box 3841, Kumasl

Ted: D32- 2045262, 2045760, 2045265
Ted (Legal Dept); 032- 2045268

Tl {Corporate Banking ) 032-2045272
Tel {Estates): 032- 2045271

Fam- 032- 2045270

Branches

Abeka La-Paz Branch

B O, Box 4791, Accra

Tel: 030=- 2228523, 22446459, 2744688
Fax: 030 2244649

Accra Makola Branch

oo P O. Box 4191, Accra

Tel: 030- 2668265, 2674308, 26755946
Fax: 030- 2668740

Accra Mew Town Branch

P O. Box 15

Aoora MNew Town

Tel: O30- 2220960, 2220086, 2220953
Fax: 030- 2220020

Achimota Branch

P 0. Box AT 887

Achimota Markst, Accra

Teel: D30- 2420030, 2420036
Fax: 030- 2420038

Adabraka Branch

B O, Box 452, Accra New Town

Tel: D30= 3221047, 3242417, 3242420
Fax: 030- 2221047

Pase 71

ADB House Branch

P Q. Box 4191, Accra

Tel: 030- 2785473, 2763730
Fax: 030- 2763580

Agona Swedru Branch

F. 0. Box 200, Agona Swedny
Tal: 033- 2020348, 2020522
Fax: 033-2021683

Ashantl Bekwal Branch

PME, Ashanti Bekeal

Tal: 032- 2520315, 2520351, 2520357
Fax: 032- 2520315

Azaln Fosu Branch
P 0. Bax 151, Assin Fosu
Tal: 033-2140548, 2140542, 2140547

Atebubu Branch

F 0. Box 18, Atebubu

Tel: 035= 2622026, 2622066
Fax: 035- 2622026

Bawku Branch

P 0. 85, Bawhu

Tel: 038- 2222330, 2222208 2222209
Fax: (58- 2222330




Berekum Branch

P O, Box 209, Berekum

Tel: 035 2222104, 2222153, 2222507
Fax; (035 2222104

Bolgatanga Branch

P O, Box 159, Bolgatanga

Tal: 038- 2022321, 2022439, 2022172,
2022178

Fax: 038- 2023443

Bonsu Nkwanta Branch
tfo P O, Box 3841, Kumas

Cape Coast Branch

P. 0. Box 1680, Cape Coast

Tel: 033- 2132834, 2132836, 1132563
Fax: 033- 2132836

Cedi House Branch

PME, Ministry Post Cffice, Accra
Tel: 030- 2662745, 2662519
Fax: 030- 2662951

Dansoman Branch

P. 0. Box DS 2270

Dansoman, Accra

Tal: 030- 23124194, 2312415, 2318065,
2311836

Fax: 030= 2318064

Denu Branch

P Q. Box 3, Damu

Tal: 036- 2530612, 2530313, 2530613,
2531210

Fax: 036- 2530612

Dormaa Ahenkro Branch
PiE, Dormaa Aqenkro

Tal: 055 2322007, 2322165
Fax: 035« 2322251

Enchi Branch

c'o P . Box 3841, Kumasi
Tel: 031 - 2622124

Fax: 031 - 2622082

Goaso Branch
P. 0. Box 72, Goaso
Tal: 035 2081998, 2004370, 024- 4312134

Gulf House Branch

P. O, Box 4191, Agera

Tel: 030- 2506201, 2506202, 2506203
Fax: 030 2506220
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Ho Bramch

P. Q. Box HP 1277, Ho

Tel: 36- 2028250, 2028284, 20252388
Fax 036- 2028274

Hohoe Branch

P. 0. Box 143, Hohoe

Tel: 036- 2722027, 2722008
Fax 036-2722051

Juapong Branch
P O Box 31, Juapong
Tel: 034-2091530, 2094299, 2094376

Kaneshie Branch

P. 0. Box 11957

Faneshle, Acta

Tl 0AD- 2ERE39D, MEE8L00, 2EER411-14
Fax 030- 2688415

Kenyasi Branch
P. O. Box KM2, Kenyasl
Tel: 035- 20845594

Koforidua Branch

P. O. Box 124, Koforidua
Tel: 034- 2022202, 2022734
Fax: 034- 2022292

Korkardzor Branch

cla P. 0. Box 11857

Kaneshie, Accra

Tel: 030- 2853081, 2853083, 2850428,
2850429

Fax 030- 2850428

Kpanda Branch

F 0. Box 10, Kpando

Tel: 036-2350938, 2350941, 2350942
Fa: 036-2 350841

Kpeve Branch

cla PO Box 10, Kpando

kumasai-Adum Branch

P Q. Box 3841, Kurnasi

Tel: 032- 2039854, 2031537, 2021521,
2434y, F024333, 20d6a92

Fax 032-2026215, 2031536

Kumasi-Amakom Branch

B O Box AH 9428, Kuemasi

Tel: 032- 2045576, 2049579, 2049575
Fax- 032- 2049577




Kumasi-Asakwa Branch

P 0. Box AH 9428, Kumasi

Tel: 032- 2033449, 2035461, 2035466
Fax: 032- 2059752

Humasi-Central Market Branch

P 0. Box R-204, Kumasi

Tel: 032- 2033481, 2033461, 2033455,
S033314, 2033913

Fax: 032- 2033465

Kumasi-Prempeh |l 5t. Branch

P 0. Box KS 8494, Kumas|

Tal: D32- 2045263, 2045275, 2045276,
2045277, 2045278, 2045278

Fax: 032- 2045269

Kwapong Branch
Private Mad Bag, Kwapong
Tel: 032- 2034795

Madina Branch

P Q. Box 4181, Accra

Tak: 030- 2518455, 2518457
Fax: 030- 2518456

Mew Edubiase Branch
P 0. Box 33, Mew Edubiass
Tal: 032- 2094674

MEkawkaw Branch
P O. Box 86, Mkawkaw

Tel: 034 - 3122041, 3122068, 3122025,

322457
Fax: 034 — 3122446

Mkoranza Branch
F 0. Box 70, Mkoranzs
Tel: 035- 2002074, 2097313

MEwania Branch
PO Box 40, Mekwanta

Mungua Branch

P. 0. Box 875, TME, Accra

Tel: 030- 3712660, 2F1T078, 2717070
Fax: 030- 2717078

Obuasi Branch

Frivate Mai Bag, Obuasi
Tel: 032- 2440704, 2440700
Fax: 032- 24406TF2

Osu Branch

P O. Box 2502, Osu, Accra
Tal; 0%0- 2TRZ3AS5, ZFTO6R0G6
Fax: 030- 2TEZIRG
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Ring Road Central Branch

P O. Box 01557, Osu, Accra

Teal: Q30= 2226121, 22297110, 2233408
Fax: 030- 2227250

Sefwi Essam Branch
cfo P 0. Box 3841, Kumas|
Tal: 024-0813416

Sefwi Winwso Branch
P. O. Box 108, Sefwi Wiawso
Tel: 024-3081133, 031- 2002003/ 2094487

Spintex Road Branch

P. O, Box 4191, Accra

Tel: 030- 2816212, 2816213, 2816215
Fax: 030- 2816214

Subhum Branch

Private Mall Bag, Suhum
Tal: 034- 2522373, 2522374
Fax; 034-2522374

Sunyani Branch

P. O, Box 110, Sunyani

Tal: 035-2027182, 2027075, 2023110
Fax; 035 20271492

Takoradi Branch

P O, Box 600, Takorad|

Tal: 031= 2023511, 2024810, 2026749,
2025341, 2021522, 2023387

Fax: 031. 2027416, 2026145

Tamale-Aboabo Branch

P O. Box 604, Tamale

Tal: O37F- 2026242, 2023700
Fax 057- 2026242

Tamale-Main Brancsh

P O. Box 6040, Tamale

Tel: O37- 20226289, 2022038, 2027330
Fax: 0537- 2023654

Techiman Branch

P 0. Box 16, Techiman

Tal: 035- 2522304, 2091080, 2091686
Fax: 035 - 2522304

Tema Branch

P O. Box 692, Tema

Tal: 030- 3216100, 3204305, 3203371,
3206396

Fax: 030- 3203372

«ADB
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Teshie Branch

P 0. Box TME E75, Accra
Tal: 030- 2712549, 2712664
Fax: 030- 2712548

UCC Branch

F. Q. Box 160, Cape Coasi

Tel 033 21319850, 2131806, 213779
Fax: 033 2130630

Achimota Agency
cio P. O. Box 9897
Achimota - Accra
Tel: D30 - 2400369

Ashaiman Agency
cio P. O, Box 652
Tema

Tel: 030 - 3300164

Buduburam Agency
cio P O, Box 11857, Kanashis
Tel: D30- 2277092, 2277108

Ejura FLO
cio P, O, Box 3841, Kumasi
Tal: 032 - 2322042

Krachie FLO
cio P. O, Box 27
Hahoa

Kwamokrom FLO
clo P. O. Box 27V
Hahios

Agencies & Farm Loan Offices (FLOs)
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Wa Branch

F O, Box 130, Wa

Tel: (K38 2022085, 2022090, 2022342
Fax: 038- 2022000

Kwashieman Agency
clo P. 0. Box 4181
Acora

Ted: 030- 2326726

Techiman Agency
P. O, Box 16
Techiman

Tel: 035-2021312
Fax; 035- 2522304

Tema-Mankoadze Agency
F. O Box 875, Tema
Tei: 030-3204756

Tumu FLO
cho PO Box 130, Wa
Tel: 039- 2022865

Vakpo FLO
cio P O, Box 2T
Hohoe

Winneba Agency
cfo P, Q. Box 200
Agona Swedry
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Correspondent Banks

Bank Currency
Bankers Trust Company usD

F.0. Box 318

Church 51, Station, New York

MY, 10008, USA

BHF-Bank EURD

P O, Box 110311, Brockenhaimer
Landstrasse 10
D-600 Frankfurt 1, Germany

Citibank N.A. usD
European Trade Finance Group

Cotten Centre, Hays Lana

Landon SE1 2BX

United Kingdom

Citibank, N.A, Lusn
111 Wall Strest, New York
MUY 10043, USA

Commerzbank AG EURD
International Bank Relations

Meue MainFer Strass 32-36

Frankfurt AM Main, Germany

Ghana International Bank UsD
69 Cheapside Streat EURD
London EC2 2BB GBF
United Kingdom
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The Poultry industry represents a significont porfion of cur
investment portfclio, With over 44 years of our commitment

in agriculture, today ADB hos the copacity to tum evenything
inta business,

This is why you will find it convenient fo partner with us in
other oreas of our commitment; (ommarne, Service, Rood
Construction and Manufodhering. Together we can furn
everything into business. Come let’s do business.

For further inbarmation plenss cantod
Tel: [030] 2770403 (030) ITH245%
e-moil: adbwebi@ogrichonk.com = website: www.ogrichank.com




OUR COMMITMENT TO
AGRICULTURAL
FINANCING
AND MORE...

Todays’ ADB, with its commitment
to excellent customer service, is one of the
largest ond most profitoble growth -
oriented  ogricultural  development
banks in Africo. Focused on Finanding
Agric and more.

Far more information condod:
TEL: +233-30-277/403 / 2782433
FAX: +233-30-2770411
a-mail: odbwebEagrichank.com :
WEBSITE :waw ngrichonk com A@FLG A hiore... |

AGRICULTURAL DEVELOPMENT BANK




